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MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Environmental Foundation of Jamaica (EFJ) is to be
a major funder of environmental protection and child survival
initiatives in the interest of sustainable development.

VISION

To be the regional leader in funding and influencing policy for envi-
ronmental management & conservation, as well as child survival and
development.

CORE VALUES N
: N\
. Good governance that dictates transparency of process and PN
accountability. N\
. Supporting partnerships and development initiatives consistent AN
with our mission.
. Respecting the value of initiatives coming from the public and ¢
private sectors and channeling this interest into partnerships .
with community groups and other organizations of civil society. e o o
. Developing and maintaining relationships that are consistently o o

ethical while being effective and efficient in doing the
organization’s business with members, clients and staff.

o Non-discrimination in relation to gender, race, creed and age.

ii




<LK

33 -37

37

38

39-41

42 - 83

84

CONTENTS

EFJ Board Members

EFJ Members of Staff
Organizational Arrangements
Standing Committees
Chairman’s Message
Secretariat Report

Grant Management
Committee

Strategic Planning
Committee

Human Resources and
Compliance Committee

EFJ Endowment Trust

Finance and General
Purposes Committee

Audited Financial Statements

List of Members

EFJ BOARD MEMBERS

Prof. Dale Webber Mrs. Eleanor Jones Mr. lan Watson
Chairman/Term Member Vice Chair/Term Member Treasurer/Term Member
Mrs. Jennifer Scott Ms. Marilyn Headley Mr Jason Fraser
Government of Jamaica Government of United States /
Board Secretary of America .

Permanent Member Permanent Member

Mrs. Donna Blake Mrs. Emma Lewis Mrs. Winsome Wilkins
The Nature Conservancy Government of Jamaica Child Representative
Permanent Member Institutional Representative Term Member

(Resigned December 2018)

s
o o \{’:
o o \‘\ .
-
e o 4
Dr. Michael Witter Dr. David Smith Mrs. Maura Barry Boyle
e o Term Member s | e e Government of United States of

America Permanent Member
(up to September 2018)




FJ MEMBERS OF STAFF ORGANIZATIONAL
ARRANGEMENTS

ATTORNEYS Myers, Fletcher & Gordon
Park Place
21 East Street
Kingston

Mr. Barrington Lewis Ms. Allison Rangolan AUDITORS PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chief Executive Officer Chief Technical Director Scotia Bank Centre
Corner of Duke & Port Royal Streets
Kingston

COMMERCIAL BANKERS National Commercial Bank Jamaica Ltd
Private Banking Branch
124 - 126 Constant Spring Road

Kingston 10
« C
INVESTMENT MANAGERS BPM Financials Limited
Mr. Leighton Cornwall Ms. Charmine Webber Mr. Mark Constable 1 A Holborn Road

Senior Accountant / HR Officer Programme Officer Programme Officer

Kingston 10.

NCB Capital Markets Limited
The Atrium

32 Trafalgar Road

Kingston 10.

ENDOWMENT FUND TRUSTEES NEW TRUSTEES TO BE APPOINTED

o ([
Ms. Sydonnie Rothery Ms. Audrey Kirkland Ms. Paulette Westcarr
Administrative Assistant Receptionist / Clerical Assistant Office Attendant
[ ([ o (]
[ [ o ([
[ ( o ([




STANDING COMMITTEES

Executive Committee

Prof. Dale Webber
Mrs. Eleanor Jones
Mr. lan Watson

Mrs. Jennifer Scott
Mr. Barrington Lewis
Ms. Allison Rangolan

Finance and General
Purposes Committee

Mr. lan Watson

Prof Dale Webber
Mrs. Donna Blake
Mrs. Winsome Wilkins
Mr. Robert Stephens
Mr. Barrington Lewis
Mr. Leighton Cornwall

Grant Management
Committee

Mrs. Eleanor Jones
Dr. Michael Witter

Dr. David Smith

Ms. Loy Malcolm

Mr. Norman Harris
Mr. Damian Lyn

Mr. Barrington Lewis
Ms. Allison Rangolan
Ms. Charmine Webber
Mr. Mark Constable

Human Resources,
Compliance and
Compensation
Committee

Mrs. Jennifer Scott
Prof. Dale Webber
Mr. Barrington Lewis

Membership
Committee

Mrs. Winsome Wilkins
Mr. Barrington Lewis
Ms. Allison Rangolan
Strategic Planning
Committee

Dr. Michael Witter
Mrs. Eleanor Jones
Ms. Marilyn Hadley
Mrs. Donna Blake
Mr. Barrington Lewis
Ms. Allison Rangolan

Fundraising Committee

Dr. David Smith
Prof. Dale Webber
Mrs. Emma Lewis
Mr. Barrington Lewis
Ms. Allison Rangolan

Public Relations
Committee

Mrs. Emma Lewis
Mr. Barrington Lewis

Mrs. Indi McClymont
Lafayette

Ms. Petre Williams
Raynor

Mrs. Francine Black
Richards

CHAIRMAN'’S MESSAGE

EFJ building and promoting successful partnerships

A cursory look at the Annual Reports of the Environmental Foundation of Jamaica (EFJ) over
the last twenty five (25) years will reveal that we generally highlight the significant amounts of
funding that we have provided to the non-governmental sector. In fact, the EFJ has awarded
1,327 grants and disbursed a total of J$3 billion (up to July 31, 2019) to its grant beneficiaries.
We are unquestionably the largest local funder of projects for non-governmental organisations
(NGOs) in Jamaica.

Funding for these projects has come from three debt swaps. You may be aware that these dis-
tinct sources are PL480, USAID Debt and TFCA funds. Of the three sources only the TFCA fund
still has inflows (up to year 2024) as the former two have already received full payments.

So what are the implications of the aforementioned facts?

Well among the implications are:

. there is an expectation from the NGOs that the EFJ will fund its projects
. the funding source determines where and how the monies received are spent
. the EFJ has to find additional sources of funds as 2024 draws nigh

The latter point has not been lost on us. We have taken steps (in the last financial year) to en-
gage a fundraising consultant, invest in our marketing and public relations campaign and, im-
portantly, sought tangible partnerships to ensure that we continue to impact the environmental
and child sectors.

What have we achieved so far?

The EFJ had a new website developed, we have increased our presence on the various social
media platforms and we have facilitated discourse on topical matters. Our sponsorship of the
Jamaica Conservation and Development Trust's (JCDT) Green Expo, a town hall meeting and
“Docuessay” on the importance of the Cockpit Country are evidence of our marketing and
public relations efforts.

Permit me though to highlight what | think is one of our greatest successes in the last few
months. That is - the important partnerships we have forged. These partnerships have greatly
impacted the environmental sector.

In 2016 we negotiated a Fund Administrator Agreement (FAA) with the Ministry of Economic
Growth and Job Creation where we would administer the Special Climate Change Adaptation




Fund (SCCAF). A total of US$4.7 million or J$620 million was to be disbursed over three and half S E C R ETARIAT R E Po RT
years to projects that focused on climate change adaptation. [US$1.4 million was apportioned to
this financial year.]

We were successful this fiscal year in having a phase 2 to the SCCAF where a further US$1.2
million or J$163 million would be disbursed to the grantees operating in the Upper Rio Minho

Watershed of Clarendon to implement approximately 1,800 MICRO check dams. The EFJ conducted a review of its operations during the current financial year. This was a part of

the process of developing a new Strategic Plan. One instructive bit of information gleaned was
Add to that we concluded negotiations for an FAA with the Forestry Department (again during the amount of the organisation’s time that was spent on grant making activities. Conservatively,
this fiscal year) valued at J$240 million. This FAA centres around an agreement with the European it was found that approximately forty (40) percent of the organisation’s time involved managing
Union and the Forestry Department where gender sensitive alternative livelihood projects will and monitoring grants. While the Foundation does other activities, grant making will continue

be funded in forested communities. Two Calls for Proposals were done during the financial year. to be the life blood of the EFJ.

The ensuing Committee reports highlight some of the activities during the year.
| am especially proud to report that the EFJ has fashioned itself as a dynamic organization that is
responsive to the demands of the “market”. We have effectively created a niche for our grant
administration and monitoring expertise so much so that J$1.02 BILLION has been made avail-
able to the NGO sector for grants within a span of three years. That for us is success in leveraging
partnerships with like-minded organisations.

This, however, does not mean that we will sit back and bask in that success. We are already focus-
ing on our next set of goals. The EFJ’s Strategic Plan was updated and we now have a new plan
that covers the years 2019 - 2021. We remain mindful of the needs of all the entities out there GRANT MANAG EM ENT
and their dependence on us to provide funding support. We have heard the cries for assistance COM MITTEE
with capacity needs as well as support for administrative costs. Our commitment to you is to
find a mechanism where we can help -given the constraints that we may have from our donors or
governing agreements.
For the year under review, seventy-eight (78) new grants were awarded:

The continued survival of NGOs is critical to us as they in fact are the implementers of all our ° Twenty-seven (27) under the European Union / Forestry Department Budgetary Sup-

projects.The Board and Staff remain resolute in our zeal to do our best for the environment and port Programme. o . B
child sectors and will continue to work assiduously “Preserving the future... today!”. I. Fifty O?e (51)hunder the ”Spemal Climate Change Adaptation Fund (SCCAF), specifical-
y rom the 2018 Call.

Management and administration of the eighty-four (84) previously selected SCCAF grants
also continued.

Grants awarded are managed according to funding source and the specifications laid out by

W the donor. In addition to the aforementioned two sources the EFJ still has active projects
under all three United States Government (USG) funding sources (PL480, USAID and TFCA).
Prof. Dale Webber
CHAIRMAN




FUNDING SOURCE: Tropical Forest Conservation Act (Forest
Conservation Fund, FCF)

TFCA projects tend to be multi-year projects and for the fiscal year there were thirteen (13)
active projects: one (1) project was originally approved in 2015 and twelve (12) were approved
under the 2016 Call for Proposals.

For this 2018/2019 report we highlight four (4) of the active projects below:

Implementing Organization: Jamaica Organic Agriculture Movement (JOAM)

Project Title: Sustainable Agroforestry Systems Supporting Organic Beekeeping and Alterna-
tive Livelihoods

Priority Area/Site: Blue and John Crow Mountains

Objectives:

(a) Increase the forest density in the buffer communities of the Blue and John Crow Mountains
National Park by planting 3,000 trees in Somerset, Hayfield, Beacon Hill and Airy Castle in St.
Thomas and Windsor in Portland.

(b) Strengthen the honey production capacity of bee farmers in buffer communities in Portland
and St. Thomas.

(c) Provide sustainable capacity building training that will introduce and reinforce requisite skills
farmers need to protect their farmsteads, improve their economic well-being and correctly craft
mitigation strategies against climate change.

Achievements:

. A shade house of approximately 500 sq. ft. has been constructed for use as a nursery. The
nursery has produced 1500 seedlings which have been distributed to 26 beneficiaries
including 2 schools.

. A composting bin of approximately 400 sq. ft. has been constructed from bamboo and
is currently maintained by three (3) persons. 5 persons contributed chicken and goat
manure (about 250 bags weighing approximately 30 Ibs. each). 200 persons (118
males and 82 females) were trained to compost waste and 45 (34 males and 11 females)
are still utilizing the training. 46 persons benefitted directly (received compost or plants
with compost in bags).

. A 10 colony apiary was established and 57 hives distributed to assist 13 farmers and 4
schools with the establishment of apiaries.

Hives delivered to farmer

Planting of seedlings




Implementing Organization: Clarendon Parish Development Committee Benevolent Society
(CPDCBS)
Project Title: CPDCBS Tumeric Processing Enterprise

Priority Area/Site: Mocho and Bull Head Mountains Forest Reserve

Objectives:
(a) Expand the production of medicinal plants by 80%

(b) Establish a customer base for the medicinal plants and their by-products

Achievements:

. Three 40 ft. metal shipping containers were retrofitted to house an office
space, storage room, work/tumeric processing area, bathroom with fixtures,
small kitchenette with dining area, sick room, solar control room, a sewage
system, solar system, lighting, security cameras with electrical fixtures,
connection to water, 2 hand sinks and 1 domestic sink and shelves in the
production room. 270 persons worked on the construction: 230 males and
40 females.

Foundation and base of processing facility Roofing of tumeric processing facility
during construction

. Material, equipment and appliances were purchased: table top heat and
bag sealers, 2 turmeric grinding machines, 1 labelling machine, 2 stands for
the grinders, cleaning and maintenance items, 1 printer, storage cabinet,
shelves, 1 kitchen cupboard, 1 storage tank, 2 metal tables, 6 labs coats and
1 hot plate.

. Training session and field demonstration for 118 participants. The areas
covered were: Health Safety and Sanitation Training, Greenhouse
Technology, Open Field Farming, Tumeric Soap Making, How to operate
the Tumeric Machine, Grinding of Tumeric into powder, and Use and Care of
the Solar System.

. Tumeric powder is the primary product with most of it being used to
develop samples for testing by potential consumers. During the period,
J$8,000.00 was received from sales which was used to assist with building
maintenance. The group is also experimenting with turmeric and other
soaps. Seven (7) volunteers are currently involved in the turmeric processing
activities. Sample products from facility

Implementing Organization: Cockpit Country Local Forest Management Committee (CCLFMC)
Project Title: Ensuring Rehabilitation and Sustainability in the Cockpit Country through Refor-
estation, Agro-forestry, Public Education and Renewable Energy

Priority Area/Site: Cockpit Country Forest Reserve

Objectives:
(a) Restore 5 hectares of Cockpit Country forest reserve.




(b) Establish 4 hectares of agro-forestry plots on private holdings of farms within the work area.
(c) Facilitate 8 public education meetings to educate at least 400 persons within the project
area on the importance of reforestation.

(d) Introduce renewable energy by installing six (6) 6,000 watt solar panels at the LFMC office.

Achievements:

The following achievements are applicable to year one of the project:

o 1,857 native species of timber seedlings were planted on four (4) hectares of established
reforestation plots

. Land preparation for agroforestry plot conducted

. Installation of eight (8) 6,000 watts solar panels at the LFMC office surpassed the

objective of installing 6 solar panels

Farmers undertaking reforestation activities with pegging and planting of
seedlings

Installation of solar panels completed




Implementing Organization: Discovery Bay Marine Laboratory, UWI (DBML)

Project Title: Phase 2: Critical Coastal Area Restoration Project

Priority Area/Site: Long Bay/Lilliput, Bogue Lagoons, (Galleon Beach) mangroves, Airport Run-
way Lagoon roadway, Falmouth-West

Objectives:

(a) Design, execute and manage restoration plans in five (5) project sites which involve the con-
tinuation of mangrove nurseries at the Port Royal and Discovery Bay Marine Laboratories with a
maximum of 15,000 plants.

(b) Train stakeholders within project locations about the value of wetlands, restoration processes
and monitoring processes for the entire duration of the project.

(c) Increase in mangrove and coastal forest area in Jamaica.

(d) Document and disseminate best practices in restoration techniques suitable for use in Jamaica
and improve coastal restoration monitoring protocols.

Achievements:

Mangrove Nurseries

In August 2018, the mangrove nurseries located at the UWI-Discovery Bay Marine Laboratory
were at the 90% capacity mark which was maintained until June 2019 when the capacity fell to
80% due to the sale of some of the seedlings. During the 12 month period (August 2018-July
2019), the troughs were routinely cleaned and maintained by students and interns who were giv-
en stipends.

Restoration Sites

Airport Runway

The solid waste fence which was installed in July 2018 did not perform as anticipated. To address
this challenge, a more rigid screening material was identified. The material, made from durable
weather resistant hard plastic, was installed and is currently performing well along the runway
site. Additional shoreline stabilization in the form of coir logs was prescribed, having seen this
material successfully used in Florida. In April 2019, the coir logs procured from the United States
of America were installed and have been performing well ever since.

Malcolm’s Bay
The 36 month monitoring was conducted at the site during the month of November 2018. Plant
growth targets have remained optimum throughout the 12 month period (August 2018-July 2019).

Bogue

Rehabilitation of an 825 m? section was completed in partnership with Sandals Foundation whilst
the monitoring is ongoing. The newly graded area does not contain monitoring plots, but the
majority of the transplants were observed to be surviving in August 2018. The plants were affect-
ed by an influx of sewage in December 2018; however, it was observed in March 2019 that the
plant numbers have doubled and there are natural recruits occurring around the created pond
area. The general area has seen an increase in bird recruitment associated with a newly created
standing water body. Migratory ducks were observed at the site in December 2018.

Lilliput

Rehabilitation works were completed in 2018. Mangrove saplings are showing good early results.
Seedling survivals from natural recruitment are good. 24 month monitoring was conducted in April
2019.

All planned restoration inputs have been implemented. The sites now require minor interventions
(e.g. more sand needed at the airport runway site) and follow up monitoring of the plants. The
results from restoration activities will be used as data in the PhD thesis of Mr. Camilo Trench: “HY-

DROLOGICAL RESTORATION APPROACHES FOR DEGRADED MANGROVE FOREST IN JAMAI-
CA". Thesis write up commenced during the reporting period (August 2018- July 2019).

Lilliput (prior to the start of the project on the left (April 2017) and 2
years later on the right (April 2019) showing naturally recruited
seedlings.

Maongrove Sapling Survival within 30 months
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Mangrowe sapling numbers within Bogue monitoring plots (10 montha)

Mangrove sapling numbers within Bogue monitoring plots (30
months: July 2016- December 2018)




Bogue Plot #2, facing West showing 1 month of mangrove growth
(July 2016)

Bogue Plot #2, facing West showing 30 months of mangrove growth
(June 2016-December 2018)

Aerial photograph of Bogue location showing 30 months (June 2016-December 2018) of man-
grove growth (left in red circle) and standing water pool (middle - black arrow).

Stakeholder training

All stages of the project development involved stakeholders at each site. Hands-on training of
community members (Lilliput and Port Royal) and of NGOs (Bogue and Malcolm’s Bay) occurred
when they assisted with the project planning and design as well as implementation of works (i.e.
provided manual labour). They also assisted with the deployment and use of equipment, monitor-
ing and were of great assistance in conducting any adaptive corrections. In most cases, members
based near the project sites monitored and reported any issues which arose to the UWI team for
corrective actions.

NGO groups in particular, have since used the sites as a part of their educational outreach and/or
tours e.g. Montego Bay Marine Park Trust continues to add nursery grown seedlings to the Bogue
site, and has used the site twice for World Wetlands Day replanting; BREDS uses the Malcolm’s Bay
site as part of their Sanctuary tours for tourists.




Discretionary TFCA Grants

The EFJ continued its discretionary grant facility during the year. In utilizing this facility organisa-
tions could apply for grants valued at no more than J$300,000.00 (approximately US$2,250.00)
outside of a formal Call for Proposals. Two (2) grants were awarded under this facility.

FUNDING SOURCE: Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund (SCCAF)

Background

The Adaptation Programme and Financing Mechanism (AP&FM) for the Pilot Programme for
Climate Resilience (PPCR) Jamaica (the Programme) is being executed by the Government of
Jamaica (GOJ) through the Ministry of Economic Growth and Job Creation (MEGJC) which has
been assigned with thematic responsibility for climate change. The MEGJC is implementing the
Programme through its Project Executing Unit (PEU) — a division in the Ministry. The Planning
Institute of Jamaica (PIOJ) is responsible for the overall coordination, in accordance with its role
as focal point for the Climate Investment Funds (CIF) programme.

The general objective of the AP&FM Project for PPCR Jamaica is to generate information on
approaches to address climate challenges and help mainstream climate change in development
planning and processes, and disseminate results across sectors.

The programme is structured into three (3) components:

Component I: Mainstreaming Climate Change Adaptation Measures. The objective of this com-
ponent is to assist the mainstreaming of climate change into development plans and planning
processes and demonstrate adaptation measures in a vulnerable watershed.

Component lI: Creation of Financial Mechanisms. The objective of this component is to create
innovative climate financing mechanisms to help support implementation of climate resilience
within Micro, Small and Medium Size Enterprises (MSMEs) and Community Based Organizations
(CBOs).

Component llIl: Knowledge Management. The objective of this component is to develop a knowl-
edge management programme for the entire Jamaica PPCR.

Component Il is the primary focus of the Environmental Foundation of Jamaica’s (EFJ) involve-
ment. Component Il involves the setting up and operation of (i) a Line of Credit, and (ii) a Special
Climate Change Adaptation Fund (SCCAF) where loans and/or small grants, respectively, will
be made available to micro, small, and medium enterprises (MSMEs), non-government organi-
zations (NGOs) and community based organizations (CBOs), particularly in the agriculture and
tourism sectors.

The EFJ was selected to be the Fund Administrator for the SCCAF and a Fund Administrator
Agreement (FAA) was signed with the EFJ on July 28, 2016.

Projects

The implementation of the projects which were awarded grants during the two (2) previous finan-
cial years under the SCCAF continued with the exception of those grants which were decommit-
ted. In November 2018 and July 2019, a total fifty-one (51) projects from SCCAF Call 2018 were
awarded grant funding of $239,316,163.06.

SCCAF 2018 Call
From Call 2018 twenty nine (29) projects were awarded grant funding of $133,973,456.36 in No-
vember 2018. The amounts and awardees are listed below.

Grantee

Barton’s Community Development Committee

Cave Valley Multi-purpose Cooperative

Claude McKay High School

Cross Keys Development Area Committee

Denbigh High School

Development Beyond Horizons

Food for the Poor

Jamaica Association for the Deaf

Jamaica Conservation and Development Trust (JCDT)
Kitson Town Community Development Committee
Local Initiative Facility for the Environment (LIFE)
Lucky Valley Primary School

Merlene Ottey High School

Moneague College

New Horizon Christian QOutreach Ministries (NHCOM)
Old Habour Youth Farmers Network

Planters Hall All Age and Infant School

Rock Hall Production and Marketing Benevolent Society
Rose Town Foundation for the Built Environment
Source Farm Foundation & Ecovillage

St. Mary Technical High School

Seaforth High School

Summerfield Community Development Organisation
Sunbeam Children's Home

Troja Primary & Junior High School

Upper Rock Spring All Age and Infant School

The University of the West Indies - Mona

The UWI Solutions for Developing Countries (UWI SODECO)

York Small Farmers Benevolent Society

Amount
Awarded

$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,425,000.00
$4,848,175.00
$5,000,000.00
$3,657,288.80
$5,000,000.00
$4,992,310.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,842,372.58
$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,034,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00

$740,409.98
$1,463,050.00
$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,997,850.00
$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,993,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,980,000.00
$5,000,000.00

Further consideration was then given to 29 SCCAF proposals from Call 2018 and final approval
was granted for an additional twenty-two (22) projects to receive funding of $105,342,706.70.
The amounts and awardees are listed below.



Alligator Head Foundation

Alpha Institute

Bellefield Citizens Development Association

Brighter Future Farmers’ Group

Carron Hall Primary School

Central Jamaica Social Development Initiative (CJSDI)
Clarendon Municipal Corporation - Leicesterfield
Clarendon Municipal Corporation - Pusey Hill

Clarendon Parish Development Committee Benevolent Society

Kellits Primary School PTA

Knockalva Polytechnic College

Mafoota Agricultural Society Limited

Mile Gully/ Warwick Castle Development Benevolent Society
Nature Preservation Foundation

Porter's Mountain Community Development Committee
Rose Hall/ Gungo Women Farmers Group

Sanguinetti Farmers Group

St. Thomas Environmental Protection Association (STEPA)
Benevolent Society

White Horses Botany Bay Pamphret Development Benevolent
Society

Wesley Frankfield Women's League

White River Marine Association

Amount
Awarded

$4,520,625.00
$3,740,550.00
$4,940,000.00
$4,998,500.00
$4,827,335.08
$5,000,000.00
$4,211,100.00
$4,357,600.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,995,500.00
$4,856,089.82
$4,999,785.29
$4,950,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,990,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,909,950.00

$4,999,066.28

$4,920,000.00
$4,965,190.00

Excavate and
secure top soil

Build a retaining
wall to prevent
further erosion

PLANNED
ACTIVITIES OUTPUTS

80,000 sq. ft. of useable space
was added to the school grounds
through the soil conservation

measures.

IMPACT

This project has impacted
over 30 students and
teachers who utilize the
facilities at the Marlie Hill
Primary School. 14
people were employed
and over 2,500 people
from the community
stand to benefit from or
use the facilities.

Windsor Castle Social Services Home Economics Benevolent
Society

$4,161,415.23

Highlights of SCCAF Projects Successfully Completed

GRANTEE RESPONSIBLE: Marlie Hill Development Committee/Marlie Hill Primary

PROJECT TITLE: Marlie Hill Primary School and Land Rehabilitation

Thematic Area: Soil Conservation

Marlie Hill Primary is located on the south coast of Manchester in an area that has hilly terrain that
makes land slippages a frequent occurrence.

Purpose of the project: The project aims to rehabilitate lands on the school compound to estab-

Top soil placed on the school playground seeing regrowth of vegetation

lish a safe zone which can be better utilized by the community members (especially students). It TR

specifically seeks to create an area void of soil erosion, which can also be used as the community

green space. o o
[  J
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Community members assisting with construction of the retaining wall Tank under construction

GRANTEE RESPONSIBLE: Knockpatrick Citizens Association

PROJECT TITLE: Anna Miller ECI Water Harvesting Project

Thematic Area: Community Water Management Systems

Project Purpose: The purpose of the project was to harvest rainwater at the Anna Miller Early
Childhood Institution because the institution is not served regularly with domestic water. The
school is dependent on water privately trucked to the facility which is costly. The project includes
a guttering system, water pump and a concrete water tank.

EXTENT OF

OBJECTIVES  ACHIEVEMENT IMPACT x
Construct a 30x30x A 65,000 gallon concrete water 51 students and teachers x
10ft concrete water storage tank was constructed. (2 females and 49 males) A
storage tank that can A 2hp electric water pump was will benefit directly from
store 67,350 gallons.  also installed. the water storage facility. o

33 persons were emplo- e
Install three (3) 10x3ft = Three (3) 10x3ft PVC pipes and yed during the life of the °
PVC pipes and two two (2) 10x4ft PVC pipes were project. Over 700 hun- e I
(2) 10x4ft PVC pipes installed as gutters. dred community mem- o | o o
as gutters bers will benefit from the .

water system. )

Completed tank




GRANTEE RESPONSIBLE: Best Care Foundation
PROJECT TITLE: Rainwater for the Children

Thematic Area: Water Management - Rainwater Collection

Purpose of the project: The project is intended to provide an 8,000 gallon rainwater storage
system to alleviate the disruption of operating a special education school and home for disabled
children, during periods of drought, when water is not available from the National Water Com-

mission (NWC) system.

OBJECTIVES

EXTENT OF
ACHIEVEMENT

IMPACT

Installation of rainwater
storage system capable
of storing 12,000 gallons
of water

Minimize disruption to
classes from unavailabili-
ty of water. No less than
20 teaching contact
hours will be provided
for all classes each week

Maintain hygiene of the
facility to the standard
established by the
Ministry of Education

To attain savings of
$30,000 to $50,000 by
replacing water from
NWC with rainwater
during a period of 6
months

The rain water storage was
installed and is able to store
22,000 gallons of water

There were no disruptions to
classes during February and April
2019, however during May 2019,
8 hours were lost due to unavai-
lability of water

The facility was maintained in a
clean and sanitary condition

The rainwater harvesting system
produced 15,206 gallons throu-
gh May 2019, which resulted in a
savings of $11,633.00 during the
four month period February to
May 2019.

A 20,000 gallon concrete
water storage tank along
with a solar system of 20
solar panels (270 watts)
were installed. Two water
pumps (1.5hp and 0.6hp
capacities), and 188 ft of
gutters and 82 ft of pipeli-
nes were installed. Two
additional water storage
black plastic tanks provided
an additional 2000 gallons
of water.

One hundred and forty-two
(142) persons directly
impacted (84 males and 58
females). One hundred and
three (103) children with
special needs were impac-
ted. Twenty-one (21)
persons were employed.

Building fitted with gutters




Solar panels on top of the concrete storage tank

GRANTEE RESPONSIBLE: Do Good Jamaica

PROJECT TITLE: Vulnerability Assessment of the Treasure Beach Community and Preparation of
a Community Disaster Risk Management Plan

Thematic Area: Disaster Preparedness

Purpose of the project: The purpose of the project is to assess the vulnerability of the Treasure
Beach community located in south St. Elizabeth to climatic hazards and develop a disaster risk
management plan. This will assist the community to reduce their susceptibility to hazards through
preparedness, response and recovery measures which will result in an overall reduction in losses
as a consequence of climate hazards.

OBJECTIVES

To prepare a Vulnerabili-
ty Assessment of the
Treasure Beach Commu-
nity and a Community
Disaster Risk Manage-
ment Plan

EXTENT OF
ACHIEVEMENT

Data collection and a Community
Disaster Risk Management Plan
completed.

Pamphlets entitled “"A Climate
Conscious Community Disaster
Preparedness” distributed to
community members.

Water storage tanks placed in
the community of Treasure Beach
for emergency purposes.

IMPACT

A 20,000 gallon concrete
water storage tank along
with a solar system of 20
solar panels (270 watts)
were installed. Two water
pumps (1.5hp and 0.6hp
capacities), and 188 ft of
gutters and 82 ft of pipeli-
nes were installed. Two
additional water storage
black plastic tanks provided
an additional 2000 gallons
of water.

One hundred and forty-two
(142) persons directly
impacted (84 males and 58
females). One hundred and
three (103) children with
special needs were impac-
ted. Twenty-one (21)
persons were employed.




Environmental Consultants meeting with community stakeholders
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Climate Change Pamphlet and Evacuation Routes and Shelters in the Treasure Beach

GRANTEE RESPONSIBLE: Summerfield Community Development Organisation

PROJECT TITLE: To Build 86m3 Gabion Wall and Erect a 68.2m U-drain in Order to Drain Water
From Pond to River

Thematic Area: Soil Conservation/Protection of Soil from Water Stress/Soil Erosion/Flood Pre-
vention

Purpose of the Project: The Gordon River, situated in Summerfield, Clarendon, runs into the
Thomas River, which then flows into the Rio-Minho River. Whenever there is heavy rainfall the
Gordon River overflows, especially due to the fact that it is being fed by a dry gully travelling
from Clarendon College, in Chapelton, one mile away. The aim of the project is to place a culvert
to remedy the blockage, sending the water from the dry gully into the river, build a u-drain for
catchment of the water from the dry gully, and build a gabion wall to retain and strengthen the
embankment which had deteriorated due to the water.

OBJECTIVES

EXTENT OF
ACHIEVEMENT

IMPACT

To construct 86m3 of
gabion wall

To provide 120m of
granular backfill

To construct 68.2m of U

drain

Construction of the gabion wall
has reduced the level of erosion
that was taking place due to
heavy rains. The construction of
the drain has alleviated the
settlement of the water in the
pond and the area is now being
used for farming.

The water is now channeled from
the pond into the river so the
area is no longer experiencing
flooding and settlement of water
when it rains.

The project has directly
impacted 1,250 persons
(800 males and 450 fema-
les). Fifty-nine (59) persons
were employed and 250
households impacted.
Approximately 2,000 com-
munity persons have been
indirectly impacted since
the installation of the drain
and gabion basket as the
area no longer floods.




Completed U drain

ré
”
’

- - g\ N
e o, “__:;\ AW T

» A 5

\ AS

y “"

Community members alongside the completed Gabion baskets

FUNDING SOURCE: Forestry Department European Union Budgetary Support Programme

The activities related to the Improved Forest Management for Jamaica (IFMJ) programme, be-
tween the European Union (EU) and Jamaica are to assist the Government of Jamaica (GOJ)
in implementing the Forest Policy for Jamaica 2017 (and supporting the National Forest Man-
agement and Conservation Plan (2016-2026), to sustainably manage and utilize Jamaica’s forest
resources to enhance social and economic development and contribute to building Jamaica's
climate change resiliency programme.

The EFJ was selected to be the Fund Administrator for a specific activity (the upscaling of exist-
ing alternative livelihood projects to support forest communities) to be undertaken pursuant to
the European Union Budget Support Programme. Institutional arrangements were established
between the Forestry Department of Jamaica and the Environmental Foundation of Jamaica via
a Fund Administrator Agreement (FAA) which commenced on February 1, 2019.

This specific objective is geared towards enhancing the economic, social and environmental ben-
efits of forests through the sustainable utilization of forest resources. It is expected that forest
communities, the general public as well as targeted groups of professionals will have increased
knowledge / capacity and participate in sustainable forest practices. This activity will therefore
provide assistance to forest communities through the up-scaling of alternative livelihood projects
to encourage the establishment of sustainable income generating project options.

Forestry Department EU Budgetary Support Programme 2019 Call #1

The first (1st) Call for Proposals under the EU/Forestry Department Budgetary Support Pro-
gramme opened on February 13, 2019 and closed on March 29, 2019. During the Call period,
EFJ hosted four (4) Proposal Writing Workshops. A total of 97 persons attended the proposal
writing workshops. One (1) proposal writing workshop was hosted in each of the four (4) Forestry
Department Regions.

When the Call for Proposals closed, 93 proposals were received with a total of J$486,282,967.45
in grant funding requested. From the 93 projects a number were short listed for due diligence
site visits. The EFJ's team conducted a total of 55 site visits. Ultimately, 27 projects were approved
by the Forestry Department’s Technical Review Committee.

Clarendon was the parish with the most proposals approved - 5; followed by St. Catherine - 4;
St. Thomas, St. Ann and Trelawny — 3 each; Manchester, St. Elizabeth and Hanover - 2 each; and
St Mary, Portland and Kingston — 1 each. There were no proposals approved from St. James, St.
Andrew or Westmoreland.

The thematic areas of Smart Agriculture/Water Catchment Areas and Apiculture each had 6 pro-
posals approved; followed by Agroforestry - 5; Rainwater harvesting — 3; Eco-tourism and Bam-
boo utilization — 2 each; and Medicinal/Nutraceutical Products, Craft Item Production and Refor-
estation — 1 each. No proposals were approved in the thematic areas of Urban Forestry and Yam
Stick Production.




The list of approved projects is included in below.

No. ORGANIZATION AMOUNT APPROVED (JMD)

1 Bamboo Primary School $3,945,028.00
2 Bella's Gate Community Development Committee $5,156,000.00
3 Bowden Pen Farmers Association $5,820,000.00
4 Clarendon Municipal Corporation $3,540,000.00
5 Cockpit Country Local Forest Management Committee - Duanvale $5,575,000.00
6  Cockpit Country Local Forest Management Committee - Troy $4,740,000.00
7 Crescent Women's Group $6,000,000.00
g  Crofts Hill Farmers Group $4,514,000.00
9 Dolphin Head Local Forest Management Committee Cooperative Society Ltd $3,200,000.00
10 Douglas Castle/McNie CDC Benevolent Society $6,000,000.00
11 Ebenezer Home for the Mentally Challenged $3,335,300.00
12 Enablers of Community Advancement Projects and Initiatives (ECAPI) $5,650,000.00
13 Golden Valley JAS Group $4,980,333.00
14 Guy's Hill United PMO $6,000,000.00
15 James Hill Farmers' Group $5,147,600.00
16 Local Initiative Facility for the Environment $6,000,000.00
17 Madras All Age and Infant School $5,925,722.33
15 Maryland All Age & Infant School $3,773,300.00
1. Morant Farmers Group $3,965,000.00
, New Horizon Christian Outreach Ministries $6,000,000.00
,1 Northern Caribbean University $5,014,843.00
,, Quick Step Community Development Committee $3,313,000.00
2 Source Farm Foundation & Eco Village $5,999,975.52
,a Southern Trelawny Environmental Agency $4,500,000.00
,e Watermount Community Development Group $5,909,367.63
) White Hall Women's Farmers Group $4,620,000.00

Youth Crime Watch of Jamaica $4,417,000.00
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TOTAL $133,041,469.48

Forestry Department EU Budgetary Support Programme 2019 Call #2

The second (2nd) EU/Forestry Department Budgetary Support Programme Call for Proposals
opened on July 22, 2019 and closed on August 30, 2019.

STRATEGIC PLANNING
COMMITTEE

The EFJ was incorporated in November 1992 and began operations in 1993. Twenty-three years
after it started operations (2016), the EFJ merged with Jamaica Protected Areas Trust / Forest
Conservation Fund, which was operationalized in 2004. The successful merger of the two organi-
sations was a catalyst for the development of Strategic Plan 2017 — 2020. This Strategic Plan was
centred on three main pillars:

. Influencing policy, capacity building and stakeholders’ sustainability
. Fundraising, sustainability and public awareness
J Continued streamlining of operational activities

These focal areas have all been linked to some of the Vision 2030 goals advocated by the Gov-
ernment of Jamaica. In deciding on those areas, a careful review was done of the Strategic Action
Plan (2013 - 2015) to identify the factors that influenced the activities that were successfully (or at
least partially) implemented and those that were not. Further, it was decided that the Strategic
Plan of 2017 — 2020 would be a dynamic document with continuous reviews.

Review of Strategic Action Plan (SAP) 2017-2020

Two reviews were conducted on the Strategic Plan. The first was in January 2018 and the second
in October 2018 (during this current fiscal year). At the October 2018 assessment, from the three
broad pillars, their statuses were summarized as follows:

J Capacity building and stakeholders’ sustainability: No activity has been
completed, one has not been started and four (4) activities are in progress /
continuing.

J Fundraising, sustainability and public awareness: Six (6) activities have been
completed, one has not been started and four (4) activities are in progress /
continuing.

. Continued streamlining of operational activities: Two activities have been

completed and all the others are in progress.

It was very instructive (and noteworthy) that the staff thought that approximately 40 percent of the
organisation’s time was spent on managing grants. As a consequence, it was agreed that while
this was not included as a strategic objective in the original version of the Strategic Plan, given its
importance and the percentage of time taken up “Grant Management and Fund Administration”
should be added as a strategic pillar. The actions and other details associated with this new stra-
tegic pillar are included in the “comprehensive” Strategic Plan document. This document was
titled Strategic Plan 2019 — 2021.




Strategic Plan 2019-2021

For the revised Strategic Plan it was agreed that the following will be maintained:

Mission:
To be a major funder of environmental protection and child survival initiatives in the interest of
sustainable development.

Vision:

To be the regional leader in funding and influencing policy for:
° Environmental management & conservation, and,
. Child survival and development

Achieving the Mission and Vision

The 2019 — 2021 Strategic Plan will guide the EFJ in building on the achievements of the 2017-
2020 SAP with the following broad focal areas.

Grant-making and Fund administration

Influencing policy and capacity building for sustainability

Fundraising, sustainability and public awareness

Continued streamlining of operational activities

Q0 oo

Updated areas of the 2019 - 2021 plan

Focal Area A: Grant management and Fund administration

From requests received, and the early work of the Fundraising consultant, it is clear that more op-
portunities will exist for the EFJ to be the “Administrator” of gra nts on behalf of other entities.
Added to that is the evaluation by the EFJ Secretariat, which indicates that approximately 40% of
the organisation’s time is spent on activities to do with grant making. It is therefore plausible that
‘Grant Management and Fund Administration’ has emerged as a key pillar on which the Strategic
Plan has to be centred on.

The EFJ will utilise, broadly speaking, a two pronged approach to Grant Management and Fund
Administration. The first will focus on the strategic grant making utilising the inflows from the For-
est Conservation Fund and the (small) balance of funds from AID Debt & PL480. Specifically, it is
expected that grants awarded will be under “strategic” themes and in targeted areas so that signif-
icant impact can be had. While the PL480 and Aid Debt objectives are broad enough to be easily
implemented, the TFCA's focus is narrower and will have to be continuously evaluated to ensure
that the Foundation is abiding by the TFCA agreement.

The second approach is to efficiently manage the process of Fund Administration. Not only will the
EFJ ensure it capitalises on ALL possibilities to be fund administrator but it will execute its duties
in such a manner that donors/grantees/stakeholders can have significant sector impact. Further,
the EFJ as an entity will benefit from lessons learnt both in terms of managing the funds of other
entities and understanding the capacity needs/challenges of current CBOs and NGOs.

Grant Management

The EFJ is cognisant of its limited resources; in fact only US$3.41 million will flow into its coffers
between 2019 and 2024 under the TFCA agreement. Having the greatest sector impact with the
funds available has been a challenge that the Grant Management sub-committee has wrestled
with. One outcome, as it tries to streamline grant making, is the development of a Strategic Plan
to guide grants awarded. This document is expected to guide the grant making process, starting
with the next Call for Proposals.

Post grant analysis is also critical going forward. The EFJ’s aim is to have more sustainable proj-
ects; projects that may be revenue generating or will have impact years after the final disburse-
ment of grant funds.

Fund Administration
. Managing/Administering Grants for Partner Organisations

As was indicated prior, managing funds/ fund administration is becoming a niche area for the EFJ.
Capitalising on each and every opportunity will be a focus of the EFJ over the next two years. It
should be noted that this will make the EFJ visible in the Grant making arena until a significant
source of funding can be realised.

J Partnering with Other Grant funders

Co-financing and the organisational experience continues to be a drawing card for the EFJ. Like
minded donors/ grant funders continue to utilise the EFJ’s as a repository of knowledge and it is
hoped that the EFJ can turn this into a revenue generating possibility.

Focal Area C: Fundraising, sustainability and public awareness

Strategic fundraising and organisation flexibility is also necessary for sustainability. Over past few
years, innovative ways have been developed to fund environmental programmes. Debt swaps,
like those at the genesis of the EFJ, have become less attractive to many countries and accessing
funding to do grant making continues to be a challenge. It is therefore important for the EFJ to
continue to keep abreast of the changing “funding” climate and be organisationally ready to
embrace the various forms monies may be available.

Constant research and responsiveness, through dedicated staff, will be one way, going forward,
that the organisation tackles this challenge. EFJ has to be responsive to opportunities in:

- Climate Financing, - Blended Finance, - Opportunities in the Blue, Green,
Orange economies, - Public /Private Partnerships - South/South Cooperation
- Impact Investors - Diaspora Finance - Crowd Funding

The EFJ may need to access funding for the small CBOs, NGOs who will not have the capacity
to access funding from some of the larger entities. Strategic partnerships have to be worked on
with implementing agencies across the spectrum and so research, workshops, conferences and
networking will play critical functions in leveraging funding into the entity.




Strategic Activities
Focal Area A: Grant-making and management/Fund administration

Focal Area B: Influencing policy and assisting with capacity building & stakeholders’ sustain-

ability

Executing a Call for proposals with the aim to have major impact in a targeted sector
Developing a Strategic Plan for Grant Making

Assist prospective grantees by receiving and processing discretionary and other grant
requests received outside the regular Call period(s)

Addressing existing needs for the grant beneficiaries

Manage/Administering Grants for Partner Organisations

Partner with Other Grant funders

Adequately manage the existing Grants

Build and maintain networks to facilitate information exchange relevant to decision making
and/or operations

Utilize EFJ’s membership in international and regional organisations to impact policy in
areas relevant to the EFJ's mandate

Facilitate stakeholder fora to contribute to the development of national policies in areas
relevant to the EFJ’s mandate

Assist targeted grant beneficiaries and potential grant beneficiaries (particularly those
working in Protected Areas and Climate Change) to build capacity through a Technical
Assistance grant

Mentor and advise grantees and members (especially in areas such as compliance with the
Charities Act and grantee-led fundraising initiatives)

Targeted support through workshops, seminars and facilitating grant proposal writing to
third parties

Continue to utilize the Institutional Self-Assessment tool for organisational development
Analyze and document post-grant successes for impact and impact sustainability to inform
future grantee interventions

Focal Area C: Fundraising, sustainability and public awareness campaign

Implement Fundraising strategy

Seek diversified funding while improving the financial management and

administration practices

Build a “funders” database and develop proposal writing capabilities

Design and implement a publicity campaign to enhance the visibility of the EFJ in
local, regional, and international spheres

Promote the EFJ’s corporate social responsibility and market the EFJ’s achievements to
the private sector

Focus on the growth of the Endowment to ensure the sustainability of the organisation

Focal Area D: Continued Streamlining of Operational Activities

Reviewing, and updating, the administrative processes

Focused data collection - specifically looking at evaluation, monitoring, impact
assessment, and record maintenance of the EFJ's database

Formalising the mechanism for marketing the EFJ’s experience in Fund Administration
and Management to assist in fundraising efforts.

Through these initiatives over the next 3 years, EFJ will build on its financial and operational
effectiveness, and appropriately develop the capacity of its members and grant beneficiaries.
These strategic activities are directly aligned with the Vision statement of the organization. Focal
Areas C and D will enable execution of Focal Areas A and B.

Note that the actions to implement the objectives in these priority areas will be sequenced in an
action plan that takes account of the opportunities in the local, regional, and international envi-
ronment.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Staff

The EFJ’s staff complement remains at eight (8). The staff level is the minimum needed to com-
plete the tasks of the organisation, have appropriate separation of duties and implement signif-
icant aspects of the Strategic Plan. Where staff have indicated their need for additional training
the EFJ’s Board continues to offer training and support. During this financial year one (1) member
of staff applied for and received funding support in “job"” relevant academic programmes.

The Strategic Plan 2017 — 2020 had made provision for the engagement of additional personnel
to supplement the efforts of the EFJ's team. A Fundraising Consultant (engaged during the prior
financial year) continued his efforts to secure funding for the EFJ. His consulting contract ended
in May 2019.

The internship programme with the University of the West Indies — Department of Life Sciences,
was also continued. Three students were engaged for 12 weeks during the summer of 2018 and
contributed significantly to the output of the Programme Department.

Compliance
The EFJ fiercely guards it compliance record and maintains full compliance with all its statutory
and corporate responsibilities. For the fiscal year 2018/2019,

. all statutory payments were made in full and on time,

. filings with the Companies Office of Jamaica are up to date,

. reporting to the Department of Cooperatives and Friendly Society are current
and all filings were completed during the financial year,

. the Congressional Report to the US State Department was submitted within
deadline.

Additionally, procurement procedures were strictly upheld.




EFJ ENDOWOMENT TRUST

Source of Funds:

. The EFJ Endowment Trust Fund was seeded with an amount of J$85,000,000.00
by way of transfers from the EFJ in the 2011/2012 financial year. The amounts
were received as follows:

From PL480 funds - $62,875,301.81
From AID DEBT Funds -$22,124,698.19

Thus, 74% of the original Endowment was from PL480 funds and the remaining
26% from AID DEBT.

A decision was taken during the 2012/2013 financial year that the Trust would offer
support to the EFJ’s operations. The amount of $20,531,650.00 was given as a long
term note receivable. As of July 31, 2019 this amount is still outstanding.

. Prior year transfers: During the fiscal year 2017/2018 the EFJ's Endowment Trust
received the amounts set aside by Jamaica Protected Areas Trust (JPAT) for the FCF
Endowment of US$582,773.53 and J$516.25 million. This was in keeping with the
decision to merge the operations of JPAT/FCF and EFJ.

Based on the JPAT framework, 50% of all annual Government of Jamaica (GOJ) in
flows are immediately placed on the Endowment Trust. A total of J$72.77 million was
transferred into the pool of funds between the 2017 and 2018 financial years.

. For the current fiscal year (2018/2019) J$48.68 million was transferred in from the
FCF GOJ receipts.

Investments and investment returns

The Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of the Finance and General Purposes Sub-Com-
mittee, gave consent in November 2018 for J$200 million of the amount in the Endowment Fund
to be invested in equities on the Jamaica Stock Exchange. This determination was reached after an
assessment was made of the returns on the BPM portfolio, the returns on the Endowment to date
and the growth of the stock market over the years. The decision on the actual equities was made
by the Board while the amount allocated per individual stock was based on the advice of NCB
Capital Markets. At year end J$134.46 million (of the J$200 million) was used to purchase shares.
A total of J$51.11 million was booked as the unrealised gains on the stocks as at July 31, 2019.

Interest earned on the Endowment investments for the period totalled J$27.32 million.
The total value of the Endowment (excluding the note receivable) at July 31, 2019 is $963.34 mil-
lion.

The asset classes and associated amounts are listed below.

DETAILS TOTAL

Equities-Local $190,862,991.73
$682,558,102.65

$82,114,020.76
Unit Trusts $7,803,280.26
$20,531,650.00

J$ Repurchase Agreements

US$ Repurchase Agreements
Note receivable from EFJ

$983,870,045.40

Trustees
In keeping with the Endowment Trust Deed, the Trustees having served their maximum tenure,

exited the Trust. The EFJ’s Board thanked them for their service. New trustees are to be appoint-
ed.

FINANCE AND GENERAL
PURPOSES COMMITTEE

Revenues:

Fund Receipts

Under the TFCA agreement scheduled inflows of J$97.35 million were received from the Govern-
ment of Jamaica (GOJ) during the year. Fifty percent (50%) of this payment, J$48.68 million, was
transferred to the Endowment Fund. The GOJ is scheduled to make TFCA payments into the EFJ
until 2024 and a balance of US$2.68 million is outstanding per TFCA Agreement as of July 2019.

Investment Income

Total investment income earned during the period was J$4.67 million. Of this amount J$2.55
million was earned on TFCA Funds and J$2.12 million on Americas Funds (J$1.81 million on
PL480 and J$0.31 million on Aid Debt).

An additional J$35.10 million was booked as unrealised gains on the equity investments for the
financial year. These equities are held with BPM Financials Ltd and fall under the PL480 funds.

Other inflows

Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund (SCCAF) - Phase 1

The EFJ received the final disbursement from the GOJ under this US$4.70 million Fund Admin-
istrator Agreement when a total of J$158.96 million was transferred into our accounts. One hun-




dred and thirty five (135) projects were awarded grants under the SCCAF Phase 1.

Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund (Phase 2) — MICRO Check Dams

The Ministry of Economic Growth and Job Creation during the fiscal year asked the EFJ to assist
with the implementation of a Phase 2 to the SCCAF. A new Fund Administrator Agreement was
signed to effect this partnership. Phase 2 involves the construction of 1,800 MICRO Check Dams in
the Upper Rio Minho Watershed (Clarendon). The value of Phase 2 of the SCCAF is US$1.2 million
and the equivalent, J$163.18 million, was received by the EFJ during the first quarter of the finan-
cial year. Ten (10) organisations were earmarked to undertake the projects.

Fund Administration Fees

As part of its thrust to diversify its income streams the EFJ has been administering grants on behalf
of other organisations. J$31.2 million was earned during the financial year on the administration of
the three funds (SCCAF Phase 1 & 2 and the EU/Forestry Department grants).

Rental Income
As has been reported in prior Annual Reports, the EFJ has rented the ground floor of its office
building. Rental income earned during this fiscal year totalled J$3.50 million.

Walkerswood Profit Share

The EFJ received an “unexpected” share of the profits in Walkerswood from the current owners of
the company. At liquidation it was agreed that shareholders/creditors of Walkerswood would be
able to participate in the profits of the company once it passed a threshold amount. J$1.14 million
was paid over and formed part of the Other Income reported on the financial statements.

Expenditures:

Administrative Expenses

The guiding principle for Administrative expenditures is contained in the Assignment, Assumption
and Amendment Agreement signed on June 29, 2015. Section 4.1(d) states that the total Admin-
istrative Expenses should not exceed US$450,000.00 without the unanimous approval of the Per-
manent Directors.

Administrative Expenses totaled J$46.25 million for the fiscal year, a $0.28 million decrease over
the prior year's expenditure. Staff costs, motor vehicle expenses, depreciation, security and utilities
were largest line items of total expenses.

Managed Fund Expenses

Direct expenses for Fund Administration totaled J$9.93 million. Of this total $1.52 million related
to the SCCAF and $8.41 million was expenditure on the EU/Forestry Department Fund Adminis-
trator Agreement.

Grant Disbursements

Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund

Approximately J$158.96 million was received during the financial year to administer the grants un-
der the SCCAF Phase 1. For the fiscal year J$162.49 million was paid over in grant disbursements.
(Cumulative disbursements at July 31, 2019 now stands at J$462.33 million).

Please see the Grant Management Committee report for more details on the disbursements.

SCCAF Phase 2 had no grant disbursements at July 31, 2019, however J$163.18 million was re-
ceived.

TFCA Funds
Financial year 2018/2019 saw gross disbursements under the TFCA of J$27.63 million while there
was a refund of J$0.13 million yielding a net of J$27.50 million.

Aid Debt Funds
No grant disbursements were made during the year.

PL480 Funds
The EFJ made no grant disbursements during the year.

Accounting Policy Changes

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, replaced the provisions of IAS 39 that relates to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, de-recognition of finan-
cial instruments and impairment of financial assets. The adoption of IFRS 9 from August 1, 2018
resulted in a change in accounting policy, however, there were no adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the financial statements as at its implementation.

In keeping with the new standard the Foundation now classifies its investments as Fair Value
through Profit and Loss (FVPL) and Amortized cost.

(a) Reclassification from available-for-sale to amortised cost

Certain investments (bonds) were reclassified from available-for-sale to amortised cost as at
August 1, 2018. This is as a result of the EFJ’s business model which is to hold these investments
for collection of contractual cash flows, and, the cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount. The fair value of $14,461,515.00 as at 1 August 2018 was
equivalent to the amortised cost for these assets. There was no impact on retained earnings at 1
August 2018.

There was no impact on retained earnings following the reclassification of equities from available
for sale to fair value through profit and loss as the Foundation has been recognising the changes
in fair value in the Statement of Americas’ and TFCA's Funds.

(b) Impairment

As of August 1, 2018, the Foundation assessed its financial assets (at amortised costs) on a for-
ward-looking basis. The expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets classified
at amortised cost and debt instruments measured at FVPL were also assessed. The Foundation
applied the ‘general model” as required by IFRS 9 for debt instruments other than trade receiv-
ables. The ECL is to be recognised in the income statement before a loss event has occurred. The
measurement of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes. The Audit report at Note 2 g (iv) provides further
details on the process.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Environmental Foundation of Jamaica

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the finaneial position of Environmental
Foundation of Jamaica (the Foundation) as at 31 July 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and with the
requirements of the Jamaican Companies Act.

What we have audited

The Foundation's financial statements comprise:

+ the statement of changes in the Americas’ and TFCA’s Funds;

+ the statement of financial position as at 31 July 2019;

+ the administrative income and expenditure statement:

+ the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

* the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accou nting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities Jor the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Foundation in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of the Jamaican
Companies Act, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Scotiabank Centre, Duke Street, Box 372, Kingston, Jamaica
T: (B76) 922 6230, F: (876) 922 7581, www.pwe.com,/jm
LA McKEnight B L. Scoit B.J. Demning G.A. Reece PLA Williams ALS. Mathan C L Bell-Wizdom GLE. Moore T Smith DaSiva K.D. Powel.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Foundation’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Foundation to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated finaneial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Jamaican Companies Act, we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of those
records, and the accompanying financial statements are in agreement therewith and give the information
required by the Jamaican Companies Act, in the manner so required.

£, WW /ﬁ-&:x

Chartered Accountants
Kingston, Jamaica
g October 2020
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Environmental Foundation of Jamaica

(A foundation limited by guarantee)

Statement of Changes in the Americas’ and TFCA’s Funds

Year ended 31 July 2019

(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 1

(Americas) (Americas) (TFCA) 2019 2018
Note Fund | Fund Il Fund Il $'000 $°000
$°000 $°000 $°000
Fund Receipts 2 - 48,677 48,677 72,777
Investment income earned 2153 313 2,548 5,014 5,927
Foreign exchange (losses)/
gains 11 (344) - - (344) 2
1,809 313 51,225 53,347 78,706
Unrealised gain on FVPL
investments 11 35,098 - - 35,098 8,013
36,807 313 51,225 88,445 86,719
Less:
Project grants disbursed, net 5 - - (27,499) (27,499) (30,636)
Transfers to administration N - (29,677) (29,677) (32,775)
investment advisers’ fees 9 (595) (124) g (719) (533)
Expected credit loss 11 - (164) o (164) -
(595) {288) (57,176) (58,059) (63,944)
Surplus for year 36,312 25 (5,951) 30,386 22775
Fund balance at beginning of
year {2,518) 88,677 123,422 209,481 186,706
Fund balance at end of year 33,794 88,602 117,471 239,867 209,481
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Page 2
Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)
Statement of Financial Position
31 July 2019
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
2019 2018
Note $'000 $'000
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 20,044 23,151
Beneficial interest in endowment fund 12 983,560 858,493
Investment securities 11 104,071 67,014
1,107,675 948,658
Current Assets
Other assets 13 14,436 4,909
Short term investment 11,12 115,693 121,201
Cash and bank 14 232,749 71,048
362,878 197,158
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued charges 15 7,905 7,736
Due to endowment fund 20,532 20,532
Managed funds 16 217,971 58,463
246,408 86,731
Net Current Asset 116,470 110,427
1,224,145 1,059,085
Equity and Capital
Administration fund-expenses recoverable 17 (9,810} (20,1386)
Capital reserves 18 10,584 11,247
Funds in Trust — Endowment Fund 983,504 858,493
TFCA funds 117,471 123,422
Americas’ funds 122,396 86,059
Total Equity and Capital 1,224,145 1,059,085
Approved on behalf of the Boa Directors on 9 October 2020'and signed on its behalf by:
| N f\r? LR
Dale Webber / Chairman lan Watson Treasurer
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Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)
Administrative Income & Expenditure Statement

31 July 2019
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 4

Note
Income
Transfers from TFCA
Transfers from Capital Reserves
Administration Fees

Other Income

Expenditure
Administrative Expenses 7
Other Expenses — Managed Funds

Total Expenditure

Surplus Income over Expenditure

Page
%2 Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 July 2019
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
2019 2018
$°000 $°000
sz,g;g sz,g;g Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Surplus for year 30,386 22,775
Adjustments for;
ZHEFF e Depreciation 3,428 3,154
663 492 increase in amount due to Administration Fund 10,326 460
31,200 11,731 Fair value adjustment on available-for-sale investments - (8.013)
4,960 3,066 Unrealised loss/{gain) on foreign exchange 344 2)
66,500 48,964 Investment income (76,108) (13,940)
Expected credit loss on financial instruments 164 -
(46,248) (46,534) _ _ o (31,458) 4454
(9,926) (1.970) Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(56,174) (48.504) Other assets (9,527) 194
Accounts payable and accrued charges 169 180
10,926 400 Managed funds 159,508 (40,968)
Cash provided/ (used in) by operating activities 118,692 (36,160)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Investments {1,227) (1,394)
Endowment Fund (125,377) {111,015)
Investment in property Plant and Equipment (321) (3,552)
Interest received 40,112 13,940
Cash used in investing activities (86,813) (102,021)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase in Funds in Trust 125,321 111,015
Capital Reserves (663) (492)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities 124,658 110,523
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 156,537 {27,658)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (344) 2
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year 192,249 219,905
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 348 442 192,249
Represented by:
Cash and bank 232,749 71,048
Short term investments 115,693 121,201
348,442 192,249
49
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Page 5

Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 July 2019
(expressed in Jamaican dollars uniess otherwise indicated)

1.

Identification and Activities

Environmental Foundation of Jamaica (the Foundation) is limited by guarantee and was incorporated in Jamaica
on 18 November 1992. The Foundation was established pursuant to an agreement between the Government of
the United States of America and the Government of Jamaica concerning the establishment of an Enterprise for
the Americas Initiative. This agreement referred to as “The Enterprise for the Americas Initiative Framework
Agreement’ (EAI Agreement) was signed on 26 November 1991 and amended effective 27 August 1993. The
agreement provides for the creation of a special Americas Fund to be administered by the Foundation in
accordance with agreement terms and the Foundation’s memorandum and articles of association.

The main objectives of the Foundation which are in conjunction with the EAl Agreement are as follows:

(i) to promote and implement activities designed to conserve and manage the natural resources and
environment of Jamaica in the interest of sustainable development and;

(i) to encourage the improvement of child survival and child development in Jamaica.

The Foundation pursues its objectives mainly through the granting of funds to organisations, for qualified
projects based on established criteria, by carrying out specific educational activities and rendering technical
assistance towards its objectives. Operations commenced in August 1993.

On 30 September 2012, the final disbursement from the Government of Jamaica under the EAl Agreement was
received. The Board of Directors approved the finalisation of a proposal to merge with Forest Conservation
Fund, to raise additional funds and continue the operations of the Foundation.

On 29 June 2015, an Assignment, Assumption and Amendment Agreement referred to as the “Assignment
Agreement’ was entered into by The Government of Jamaica (GOJ), The Nature Conservancy (TNC), The
Jamaica Protected Area Trust Limited (JPAT) and the Environmental Foundation of Jamaica (EFJ). The
agreement resulted in the transfer of the rights and obligations of JPAT under the "Forest Conservation
Agreement’ dated 21 September 2004 to EFJ and the agreement of this transfer of rights and obligations by
GOJ and TNC.

On 26 October 2016, the terms under the Assignment, Assumption and Amendment agreement were executed
resulting in the assets and liabilities of JPAT being transferred to EFJ.
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Page 6

Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 July 2019

{expressed in Jamaican doliars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements comply with IFRS as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and esfimates are significant for the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
contemplates the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in current year
Certain interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published that became
effective during the current financial year. The Foundation has assessed the relevance of all such new
standards, interpretations and amendments, and has adopted the following, which are immediately
relevant to its operations.

¢ |IFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’ (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018). This IFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions
or parts of fransactions where there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign
currency. The interpretation provides guidance for when a single payment/receipt is made as well as
for situations where multiple payment/receipt are made. The guidance aims to reduce diversity in
practice. It does not apply when an entity measures the related asset, expense or income on initial
recognition at fair value of the consideration received or paid at a date other than the date of initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability. Also, the interpretation need not be
applied to income taxes, insurance contracts or reinsurance contracts. The adoption of this standard
did not have a significant impact on the Foundation's financial statements.

e IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018). In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 which is the comprehensive standard to
replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and includes requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. Financial assets are required to be classified into three measurement categories:
those fo be measured subsequently at amortised cost, those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL).

Classification for debt instruments is driven by the entity’s business model for managing the financial

assets and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI).
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Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)
Notes to the Financial Statements
31 July 2019
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 July 2019

(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) Basis of preparation (continued)

if a debt instrument is held to collect the asset's cash flows, it may be carried at amortised cost if it also
meets the SPPI requirement. Debt instruments that meet the SPPI requirement that are held in a
portfolio where an entity both holds to collect assets’ cash flows and sells assets may be classified as
FVOCI. Financial assets that do not contain cash flows that are SPPI must be measured at FVPL (for
example, derivatives). Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from financial assets but will be
included in assessing the SPPI condition.

Changes in accounting policies resulting from adoption were applied retrospectively as at 1 August 2018,
but with no restatement of comparative information for prior years. Refer to note 20 for details.

¢ IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for the periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018). The new standard introduces the core principle that revenue must be recognised
when the goods or services are transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any bundled
goods or services that are distinct must be separately recognised, and any discounts or rebates on
the contract price must generally be allocated to the separate elements. When the consideration
varies for any reason, minimum amounts must be recognised if they are not at significant risk of
reversal. Costs incurred to secure contracts with customers have to be capitalised and amortized
over the period when the benefits of the contract are consumed. The adoption of this standard did
not have a significant impact on the Foundation’s financial statements.

e Amendment to IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018). These amendments comprise clarifications of the
guidance on identifying performance obligations, accounting for licences of intellectual property and
the principal versus agent assessment (gross versus net revenue presentation). The IASB has also
included additional practical expedients related fo transition to the new revenue standard.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Foundation

The Foundation has concluded that the following standards which are published but not yet effective are
relevant to its operations and will impact its accounting policies and financial disclosures as discussed
below. These standards and amendments to existing standards are mandatory for the Foundation's
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 August 2018, but the Foundation has not early adopted:

* Amendment to IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018). This amendment confirms that when a financial liability measured at amortised cost
is modified without this resulting in de-recognition, a gain or loss should be recognized immediately
in the profit and loss. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between the original contractual
cash flows and the modified cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
Foundation is currently assessing the impact of this standard.

e Amendments fo IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements’ and IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022). These amendments clarify the definition of materiality and the meaning of primary
users of general purpose financial statements by defining them as existing and potential investors,
lenders and other creditors. The Foundation is currently assessing the impact of this standard.
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* Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (effective for annual periods heginning
on or after 1 January 2020). The revised Conceptual Framework will be used in standard-setting
decisions with immediate effect, however no changes will be made to any of the current accounting
standards. Entities that apply the Conceptual Framework in determining accounting policies will need
to consider whether their accounting policies are still appropriate under the revised Framework. The
Foundation is currently assessing the impact of this revision.

s IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 now
requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of use
asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees
For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance
on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts),
lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting model for
lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and lessees.

Under IFRS 186, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Foundation is currently
assessing the impact of future adoption of the new standard on its financial statements.

There are no other new or amended standards and interpretations that are published but not yet effective
that are expected to have an impact on the accounting policies or financial disclosures of the Foundation.

{b) Government of Jamaica Receipts

(c)

Government of Jamaica payments received by the Foundation under the Enterprise of the Americas
Initiative Framework Agreement are recorded when received and credited directly to the Americas’ Funds
Account until disbursed.

Income recognition

Interest income is recognised in the Americas' Funds for all interest-bearing instruments which is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the
loss allowance). Interest income is recognised where it is earned from financial assets that are held for
cash management purposes. Interest income includes income earned on cash and cash equivalent
accounts held.

Dividends are recognized when the Foundation’s right to receive payment is established, it is probable the
economic benefits will flow to the Foundation and the amount can be measured reliably. The Foundation
recognizes dividends in Statement of Changes in the Americas’ and TFCA’s Funds (profit and loss
account).
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Page 9

Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 July 2019

(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translations

(e)

U]

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Foundation are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Foundation operates. The financial statements are
presented in Jamaican dollars, which is the Foundation’s functional and presentation currency.

Translation and balances

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the year end date monetary assets denominated in foreign currency are translated using
the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of transactions at rates
different from those at the dates of the transactions and unrealised foreign exchange difference on
unsettied foreign currency monetary assets are recognised in the Americas’ Funds.

Employee benefits

Employees' entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
year end date.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis at annual rates that will write off the carrying value of
each asset over the period of its remaining useful life. Annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Building 25%-125%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computers 25%
Furniture and fixtures 10%

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Repairs and maintenance are charged as administrative expenses during the financial period in which

they are incurred. Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by
reference to their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining administrative fund balance.

54

Page 10

Environmental Foundation of Jamaica
(A foundation limited by guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 July 2019

(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9) Financial insfruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset in one entity and a financial
liability or equity of another entity.

Accounting Policy applied until 31 July 2018

Financial assets

The Foundation classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and
available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the year end date.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management
infends fo dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date. At the year end date,
the following financial assets were classified as available for sale: government securities, quoted equities
and repurchase agreements.

Financial liabilities

The Foundation's financial liabilities are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. At the year end date, the following items were
classified as financial liabilities, accounts payable and accrued charges and managed funds.

Accounting policy applied from 1 August 2018

i)  Classification
From 1 August 2018, the Foundation classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:
» those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Foundation's business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
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Environmental Foundation of Jamaica Environmental Foundation of Jamaica

(A foundation fimited by guarantee) (A foundation limited by guarantee)
Notes to the Financial Statements Notes to the Financial Statements

31 July 2019 31 July 201? _ o
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated) (expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued) {g) Financial Instruments (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in profit or loss (statement of
changes in Americas’ and TFCA's Funds). For investments in equity instruments that are held for trading,
Management has accounted for the equity investment at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL).

{ii) Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on setflement date. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Foundation has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

(ii} Measurement

Debft Instruments

Measurement of debt instruments depends on the Foundation’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Foundation classifies its debt instruments
into two measurement categories:

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in the income statement using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss. Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the income statement.

- FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

The Foundation subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Changes in the fair
value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in the income statement.

(iv) Impairment

As at 1 August 2018, the Foundation assesses its financial assets at amortised costs on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets classified at
amortised cost and debt instruments measured at FVPL.

Application of the General Model

The Foundation applied the 'general model’ as required by IFRS 9 for debt instrument other than
trade receivables. Under this model, the Foundation is required to assess on a forward-looking basis
the ECL associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and FVPL. The ECL will
be recognised in the profit or loss before a loss event has occurred. The measurement of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes.
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The probability-weighted outcome considers multiple scenarios based on reasonable and supportable
forecasts. Under current guidance, impairment amount represents the single best outcome: the time
values of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECL is calculated by multiplying the Probability of default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure
at Default (EAD). The impairment model uses a three-stage approach based on the extent of credit
deterioration since origination:

Stage 1 - 12-month ECL applies to all financial assets that have not experienced a significant increase in
credit risk since origination and are not credit impaired. The ECL will be computed using a 12-month PD
that represents the probability of default occurring over the next 12 months.

Stage 2 — When a financial asset experiences a significant increase in credit risk subsequent to
origination but is not credit impaired, it is considered to be in Stage 2. This requires the computation of
ECL based on lifetime PD that represents the probability of default occurring over the remaining
estimated life of the financial asset. Provisions are higher in this stage because of an increase in risk and
the impact of a longer time horizon being considered compared to 12 months in Stage 1.

Stage 3 - Financial assets that have an objective evidence of impairment will be included in this stage.
Similar to Stage 2, the allowance for credit losses will continue to capture the lifetime ECL.

The Foundation uses judgement when considering the following factors that affect the determination of
impairment:

»  Assessment of credit risk; this is done on a relative basis. To assess whether the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since origination, the Foundation compares the risk of
default occurring over the expected life of the financial asset at the reporting date to the
corresponding risk of default at origination, using key risk indicators that are used in the
Foundation’s existing risk management processes. At each reporting date, the assessment of a
change in credit risk will be individually assessed for those considered individually significant and at
the segment level for retail exposures. This assessment is symmetrical in nature, allowing credit risk
of financial assets to move back to Stage 1 if the increase in credit risk since origination has
reduced and is no longer deemed to be significant.

s  Macroeconomic Factors and Forward-Looking information
The Foundation applies an unbiased and probability weighted estimate of credit losses by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes that incorporates forecasts of future economic conditions.

Macroeconomic factors and forward-looking information are incorporated into the measurement of

ECL as well as the determination of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination.
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Environmental Foundation of Jamaica Environmental Foundation of Jamaica

(A foundation limited by guarantee) (A foundation limited by guarantee)
Notes to the Financial Statements Notes to the Financial Statements

31 July 2019 31 July 201.9 _ o
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated) (expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (continued)

Measurement of ECLs at each reporting period reflect reasonable and supportable information at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The
Foundation uses three scenarios that are probability weighted to determine ECL.

Expected Life when measuring ECL, the Foundation considers the maximum contractual period over
which the Foundation is exposed to credit risk. All contractual terms are considered when determining
the expected life, including prepayment options and extension and rollover options. For certain revolving
credit facilities that do not have a fixed maturity, the expected life is estimated based on the period over
which the Foundation is exposed to credit risk and where the credit losses would not be mitigated by
management actions.

The Foundation has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively but has elected not to restate comparative
information. As a result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in
accordance with the Foundation’s previous accounting policy.

The Foundation classifies its investments as Fair Valued through Profit and Loss (FVPL) and Amortized
cost investments. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and
re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

{h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at the year end at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, deposits held on call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with maturity dates of less than 90 days.

{) Accounts payable
Accounts payable are stated at historical cost.

() Administration fund/deferred income
Where funds received for administration expenses are insufficient to cover these expenses, the over
expended balance, referred to as Administration Fund - expenses recoverable, is recoverable from the
Americas’ Funds. While funds received for administration expenses, which are unexpended, are referred
fo as Administration Fund - deferred income. Refer to note 17 for details.
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(k) Capital reserves
The cost of property, plant and equipment acquired from Government of Jamaica EAl receipts, for
administrative purposes, is credited directly to capital reserves and is written off to the administration fund
account over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

() Americas’ funds
As outlined in Note 1, the EAI Agreement provides for the establishment of a special Americas’ Fund to be
administered by the Foundation in pursuit of its objectives. Under this arrangement, specific amounts due
by the Government of Jamaica to the Government of the United States of America are paid into the fund in
accordance with provisions of two debt reduction agreements (Agreement | and Agreement I1). Agreement |
relate to funds owed under the U.S. PL480 programme and Agreement Il relates to funds owed under a
specific USAID debt Agreement.

In accordance with the EAl Agreement, all funds deposited into the Fund, including investment income
earned belongs to the Government of Jamaica until disbursed in accordance with stipulated guidelines.

The two funds should not be co-mingled.

{m} Impairment of non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets are reviewed for impairment losses
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows.

{n) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Foundation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Financial Risk Management

The Foundation’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Foundation’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Foundation's financial performance.

The Foundation's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Foundation regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems
to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the establishment and oversight of the Foundation’s risk
management framework. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, and investment of
excess liquidity.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk {b) Liquidity risk

The Foundation takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a party will cause a financial loss
for the Foundation by failing to discharge its contractual obligations. Credit risk is a very important risk for
the Foundation’s business; management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally from the Foundation's cash and investment activities. The Foundation
structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to
a single counterparty or groups of related counterparties.

Credit review process
Management performs ongoing analyses of the ability of borrowers and other counterparties to meet
repayment obligations.

(i) Investments
The Foundation limits its exposure to credit risk by investing mainly in liquid securities, with
counterparties that have high credit quality and Government of Jamaica securities. Accordingly,

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Foundation maybe unable to meet its payment obligations associated with
its financial liabilities when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and marketable securities, and the ability to close out market positions.

Liquidity risk management process
The Foundation's liquidity management process includes:

(i)  Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can easily be liquidated as
protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

(i)  Optimising cash returns on investment; and

The maturities of assets and liabilities are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Foundation
and its exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities

management does not expect any counterparty to fail o meet its obligations.
The maturity profile of the Foundation’s financial liabilities at year end based on contractual undiscounted

(iiy Cash payments was as follows:
Cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial institutions. The Foundation has policies .
that limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution. Within 1 1t0 3 3to12 Total
Month Months Months
Maximum exposure to credit risk $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
The Foundation's maximum exposure to credit risk at year end was as follows: 2019
2019 2018
$°000 $’000 Accounts payable and accrued charges 339 242 7,324 7,905
Investment securities 1,114,700 994,337 Due to Endowment Fund - - 20,532 20,532
Cash and bank 232,749 71,048 Managed funds - 216,970 1,001 217,971
Other assets 14,069 4,725 339 217212 28,857 246,408
1,361,518 1,070,110 3098
Exposure to credit risk for investment securities
The following table summarises the Foundation’s credit exposure for investment securities at their Accounts payable and accrued charges 691 430 6,615 7,736
carrying amounts, as categorised by issuer: Due to Endowment Fund - - 20,532 20,532
2019 2018 Managed funds - 57,462 1,001 58,463
$°000 $°000 691 57,892 28,148 86,731
EneameNt Fund ; 983,870 858,493 Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover financial liabilities include cash and short-term
Government of Jamaica 15,137 14,643 investments.
Securities
Corporate 115,683 121,201
1,114,700 994,337
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Market risk

The Foundation takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly
arise from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. Market risk exposures are
measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Foundation's exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk,

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Foundation is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabifities.

The Foundation manages its foreign exchange risk by ensuring that the net exposure in foreign assets
and liabilities is kept to an acceptable level by monitoring currency positions. The Foundation further
manages this risk by discussing with Fund Managers the projected exchange rates and divert into
Jamaican dollar investments where adverse exchange rate movements are expected.

Concentrations of currency risk:

The table below summarises the Foundation’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at
31 July.

Foreign currency sensitivity
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(c) Market risk (continued)
Currency risk {continued)
2018
Jamaican $ United States $ Total
J$'000 J$’000 J$'000
Financial Assels
Available-for-sale investments 60,155 6,859 67,014
Short term investments 121,201 - 121,201
Beneficial interest in endowment 778,921 79,572 858,493
Cash and bank 69,231 1,817 71,048
Qther assets 4,909 - 4,909
Total financial assefs 1,034,417 88,248 1,122,665
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
charges 7,590 146 7,736
Due to Endowment fund 20,532 - 20,532
Managed funds 58,463 - 58,463
Total financial liabilities 86,585 146 86,731
Net financial position 947,832 88,102 1,035,934

2019
Jamaican $ United States $ Total
J$'000 J$°000 J$’000
Financial Assets
Investments — FVPL 104,071 - 104,071
Short term investments 115,693 - 115,693
Beneficial interest in endowment fund 201,756 81,804 983,560
Cash and bank 231,538 1,211 232,749
Other assets 14,436 - 14,436
Total financial assets 1,367,494 83,015 1,450,509
Financial Liabilities 7,759 146 7,905
Accounts payable and accrued charges
Due to Endowment fund 20,532 - 20,532
Managed funds 217,971 - 217,971
Total financial liabilities 246,262 146 246 408
Net financial position 1,121,232 82,869 1,204,101

62

The following tables indicate the currencies to which the Foundation had significant exposure on its
monetary assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The change in currency rates below
represents management’s assessment of the possibie change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis shows the impact of translating outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items,
assuming changes in currency rates shown in the table below. The sensitivity was primarily as a result
of foreign exchange gains and losses on translation of US dollar-denominated investments. The
correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on market risk, but
to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variable, variables had to be on an individual basis. It
should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear.
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3. Financial Risk Management {Continued) 5. IFinancEiRiskMatigeieht {Continued)
(c} Market risk {continued) (c) Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued) Interest rate risk (continued)
% Change in Effect on % Change Effect on Within 1 1to3 Non-lnter_est
Currency Equity and in Currency Equity and Month Months Bearing Total
Rate Capital Rate Capital $°000 $’000 $°000 $°000
2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
$°000 $°000
Currency: Assaty
UsD 4 (3,333) +2 (1,762) Avallable-lor-sale-invastmants - 14,643 52371 67,014
UsD -6 4,991 -4 3,524 Beneficial interest in endowment fund - 858,493 = 858,493
Short term investments 121,201 - - 121,201
interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate Cash and bank 71,043 - - 11,048
because of changes in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments expose the Foundation to cash Other assets - - 4,909 4,909
flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Foundation to fair value interest risk. Tkl Fnanicialamsehs 192,249 873,136 57280 1,122,665
The following table summarises the Foundation’s exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the Liabilities
Foundation’s financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing Managed funds being total financial
or maturity dates. liabilities (1,001) - (57,462) (58,463)
Within 1 1t03 Nonh: kst Total interest repricing gap 191,248 873,136 (182) 1,064,202
Month Months Bearing Total tfeesia i
) . : . nterest rate sensitivity
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 The following table indicates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in interest rates, with all other
2019 variables held constant, on the Foundation’s statement of changes in the Americas’ Funds.
Assets The sensitivity of the statement of changes in the Americas’ Funds is the effect of the assumed changes in
Investments — FVPL - 14.972 89.099 104,071 interest rates on net deficit based on non-rading financial assets. The sensitivity of changes in the
o ) ’ ' Americas’ Funds is calculated by revaluing fixed rate FVPL financial assets for the effects of the assumed
Beneficial interest in endowment fund - 983,560 - 983,860 changes in interest rates. The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the
Short term investments 115.603 - < 115,603 ultimate impact on market risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variable, variables had
R 232’749 939 748 to be on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear.
ash and ban ; = = :
Other assets - - 14,436 14,436 E Eﬁif;t °: E Ef!’teyct og
quity an quity an
Total financial assets 348,442 998,532 103,535 1,450,509 Capital Capital
Liabilities 2019 2018
Mana_ger_j _f_unds being total financial $000 $000
liabilities - - (217,971)  (217,971) . R
) . - Change in basis points:
Total interest repricing gap 348,442 908,532 (114,436) 1,232, 1% (2018 -1%) (205) (148)
+1% (2018: +1%) 205 148
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(d) Capital management

(e)

The Foundation’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide benefits for stakeholders. There were no changes to the Foundation’'s
approach to capital management during the year.

In Accordance with the Assignment, Assumption & Amendment Agreement dated June 29, 2017,
Section 4.1(d), the total administrative expenses should not exceed a maximum combined amount of
US$450,000 without the unanimous approval of the permanent Directors.

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction,

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments held as at the date of the statement of
financial position that, subsequent to initial recognition, are measured at fair value. The financial
instruments are grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable, as
follows:

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical instruments;

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the instrument, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived from prices); and

¢  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the instrument that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
2019
Investments at FVPL - -
Quoted equities 89,099 - - 89,099
Government of Jamaica bonds - 15,136 - 15,136
Expected credit losses - (164) X (164)
89,099 14,972 - 104,071
2018
Available-for-sale
Quoted equities 52,371 - - 52,371
Government of Jamaica bonds - 14,643 - 14,643
52,371 14,643 - 67,014
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(e) Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
date of the statement of financial position. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly avatlable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets is the current bid price. These instruments are grouped
in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3.

4. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Source of Uncertainty

The management of the Foundation makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

{a) Critical judgements in applying the Foundation’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Foundation's accounting policies, the management has not made any
significant judgements that would cause a significant impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

{b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the process of applying the Foundation’s accounting policies, the management has not made any
significant estimate that would cause a significant impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
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5. Project Grants Disbursed
Fund 1ll
$°000
Projects' disbursement, net 27,499
Disbursements allocated as follows:
4-H Club 300
Alligator Head Foundation 1,666
Association of Science Teachers (Moneague College) -
Cave Valley Multipurpose Cooperative 300
Clarendon Parish Development Committee Benevolent Society 2,570
Dolphin Head Cocperative 1,175
Hanover Bee Farmers' Cooperative Society Limited 240
Jamaica Conservation and Development Trust 3,860
Jamaica Organic Agriculture Movement 2,407
Lionel Town Development Area Committee Benevolent Society 823
Lions Club of Mona 10,078
Local Initiative Facility for the Environment -
Mitchell Town Citizens Association =
Ocho Rios Nature Preserve -
Redlands -
Southern Trelawny Environmental Agency 2,350
Treadlight Youth & Community Club Benevolent Society -
UWI Discovery Bay Marine Lab 1,590
UWI Special Projects 378
27,627
Refunds
Miichell Town Citizens Association (128)
Net Disbursements 27,499
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6. Administration Fund

In accordance with the Assignment, Assumption & Amendment Agreement dated June 29, 2015 Section 4.1(d),
the total administrative expenses should not exceed a maximum combined amount of US$450,000 without the
unanimous approval of the permanent Directors. Permanent Directors comprise one Director appointed by the
Government of Jamaica, one Director appointed by the United States Government and one Director appointed
by The Nature Conservancy.

Total administrative expenses during the year was below the threshold permitted and indicated below:

2019 2018

$°000 $°000

Jamaican Dollar eguivalent of US$450,000 60,562 59,968
Less: Administrative expenses for the year (note 7) (46,248) (46,534)

Excess 14,314 13,434

7. Expenses by Nature

2019 2018
$°000 $°000
Advertising and public relations 384 1,355
Auditors’ remuneration 1,100 1,100
Depreciation (Note 10) 3,428 3,154
Legal and professional fees 1,217 938
Local and foreign travelling expenses 67 249
Motor vehicle expenses 1,409 1,258
Office and general expenses 1,624 1,841
Printing and stationery 158 264
Repairs and maintenance 1,326 1,565
Staff costs (Note 8) 29,499 27,812
Security 2,656 2,466
Utilities 2,644 2,863
Other expenses 736 1,669
46,248 46,534
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8. Staff Costs
2019 2018
$°000 $'000
Wages and salaries 25,433 23,969
Payroll taxes — empioyer's portion 2,606 2,677
Other 1,460 1,166
29,499 27,812
The number of persons employed by the Foundation at the year-end was 8 (2018 - 8).
9. Investment Advisers’ Fees
Investment Advisers’ fees for the year are comprised as foliows -
2019 2018
$’000 $°000
BPM Financials Limited 719 533
10. Property, Plant and Equipment
2019
Freehold
Land and Motor Furniture
Building Vehicles Computers and Fixtures Total
$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000 $000
At Cost -
At 1 August 2018 27,168 11,479 18,630 6,906 64,183
Additions - - 131 190 321
Disposals - - = - -
At 31 July 2019 27,168 11,479 18,761 7,006 64,504
Depreciation -
At 1 August 2018 12,622 3,253 18,406 6,751 41,032
Disposals - - - - -
Charge for the year 871 2,296 199 62 3,428
At 31 July 2019 13,493 5,649 18,605 6,813 44 460
Net Book Value -
31 July 2019 13,675 5,930 156 283 20,044
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

2018
Freehold
Land and Motor Furniture
Building Vehicles Computers and Fixtures Total
£000 $’000 $’000 $'000 $°000
At Cost -
At 1 August 2016 23,802 12,915 18,630 6,720 62,067
Additions 3,366 - - 186 3,552
At 31 July 2018 - {1,436) - - {1,436)
Depreciation - 27,168 11,479 18,630 6,906 64,183
At 1 August 2016
Disposals 12,082 2,393 18,137 6,702 39,314
Charge for the year - (1,438) - - (1,438)
At 31 July 2018 540 2,296 269 49 3,154
Net Book Value - 12,622 3,253 18,406 6,751 41,032
31 July 2018 14,546 8,226 224 155 23,151
11. Investment Securities
2019 2018
$°000 $'000
At beginning of year 67,014 57,607
Fund Receipts (net) 113,146 116,665
Investment Income 35,098 8,013
Interest Earned 5,014 5,927
Exchange differences (344) 3
Expected credit loss (164) 5
At end of year 219,764 188,215
Represented by:
Short term investments (amortised cost)
Repurchase Agreement 105,585 121,201
Cash Deposit 10,108 -
115,693 121,201
Investments at FVPL
Equity Instruments (Quoted Shares) 89,419 52,371
Debt Instruments (Government Bonds) 14,652 14,643
104,071 67,014
219,764 188,215
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12. Beneficial Interest in Endowment Fund
2019 2018
$°000 $’000
Total investments comprised the following -
Endowment Fund
Funds held in frust 963,028 837,961
Notes receivables 20,532 20,532
983,560 858,493
Investment FVPL {Note 11) 104,071 67,014
Investments at amortised cost (Note 11) 115,693 121,201
1,203,324 1,046,708

The Board, in recognition that the America’s Fund is a reducing source which was established for a limited
period of time, approved the establishment of an endowment fund on 23 September 2004 and seeded the
fund with $85,000,000 in January 2013. The purpose of the fund is fo ensure that the Foundation has a
long-standing and sustained source of income.

In furtherance of the EFJ's merger with Forest Conservation Fund / Jamaica Protected Areas Trust
(JPAT):
e the amount of $633,135,000 designated by JPAT for their Endowment Fund was transferred to
the EFJ in 2016/2017,
» the amount of $48,042,000.00 was transferred in 2017/2018, and
« the amount of J§48,677,000.00 was received in 2018/2019

These amounts are now being invested in a separate pool of Funds at NCB Capital Markets.
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12. Investment Securities (Continued)

Investment Securities by Adviser

Endowment Fund
Expected credit loss

nvestments -
Barita Portfolioc Management
Limited
Securities (FVPL)
Quoted equities (FVPL)
Expected credit loss
Amortised cost

Accrued interest
Total investments

13. Other Assets

Prepayments
Other receivables

Fund | Fund il Fund ll 2019 2018
$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000 $'000
104,734 36,879 840,334 981,947 857,118
(310) (310) }

320 14,775 - 15,095 14,602
89,099 - - 89,099 52,371
(164) (164) -

- - 115,693 115,693 121,165
194,153 51,490 955,717 1,201,360 1,045,256
136 85 1,743 1,964 1,452
194,289 51,575 957,460 1,203,324 1,046,708

2019 2018

$’000 $’000

367 184

14,069 4,725

14,436 4,909

(i) The Foundation has been granted a waiver of all taxes in accordance with Article Ill of the agreement
between the Government of Jamaica and the Government of the United States of America concerning an
Enterprise for the Americas Initiative and in accordance with the provisions of Charities Act.

(i) Other receivables primarily represent administrator fees receivable from the Special Climate Change

Adaptation Fund.

14. Cash and Bank

Cash and bank

2019 2018

$°000 $°000

232,749 71,048
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15. Accounts Payable and Accrued Charges 16. Managed Funds {Continued)
2019 2018 (b) Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund
$00 +000 The Adaptation P dFi ing Mechanism for the Pilot P for Climate Resili
e Adaptation Programme and Financing Mechanism for the Pilot Programme for Climate Resilience,
Accounts payable 339 288 Jamaica (PPCR) is being executed by the Government of Jamaica (GOJ) through the Ministry of
Accrued charges 5,588 5,218 Economic Growth and Job Creation (MEGJC) which has been assigned the responsibility for climate
Other 1978 2930 change. The Programme is pursued with funding provided by the Special Climate Change Adaptation
E L Fund (SCCAF) and comprises three (3) cornponents.
7,905 7,736
The MEGJC wishes to pursue the implementation of Component Il of the Programme which relates to the
16. Managed Funds creation and establishment of innovative climate financing mechanisms to help support implementation of
2019 2018 climate resilience within Micro, Small and Medium Size Enterprises (MSMEs) and Community Based
$'000 $'000 Organizations (CBOs).
i ' iati 1,001 1,001 y
goﬁﬁel;nc.:g ma:cgr? onserx:tlor: ?ssoslatlgnbEndowment Farda) 216.970 57 462 The total sum allocated for the purposes of performing the activities under Component Il is Four Million
pecial Climate Change Adaptation Fund (b) ' . Seven Hundred Thousand United States Dollars (USD $4,700,000.00). Broken out as follows:
217,971 58,463 Year 1: US$1,200,000.00
Year 2: US$1,400,000.00
(a) Northern Jamaica Conservation Association Year 3: US$1,400,000.00

Year 4: US$ 700,000.00
The Foundation has decided to manage separately monies approved for the establishment of an

Endowment Fund for Seven Oaks Sanctuary for Wildlife. The amount approved, and interest earned is as The MEGJC engaged the Environmental Foundation of Jamaica (EFJ) to perform the Services required to
follows: implement these activities. Fees for the performance of these services were agreed to be 7% of the
annual allocations.
2019 2018
$°000 $°000 Statement of changes in fund balance
Opening balance of fund 1,001 1,001 32’333 ;g;g
Closing balance of fund 1,001 1,001 o
Balance at beginning of year (29,207) 68,000
The agreement between the Foundation and NJCA (amended in December 2007) included the restriction of Add: Fund Recsipts — Ministry of Economic Growth & Job Creation 327,108 164,114
disbursements to interest earned for a period of five years after which the grant will be eligible for renewal. Less:
There were no disbursements in the period.
Grant Awards-
paid (i) {162,494) {193,292)
accrued {i) (239,645) (56,153)
Fund Administrator fees-
paid (4,946) (9,989)
accrued (13,329) (1,741)
Bank Charges (160) {146)
Surplus for year (93,452) (97,207)
Balance at end of year (122,669) (29,207)
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16. Managed Funds (Continued)
(b) Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund {continued)
Statement of cash flows
2019 2018
$°000 $°000
Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus for year (93,462) (97,207)
Adjustments for:
Granis awarded but not dishursed 239,645 56,152
Fund Administrator fees payable 13,325 87
Cash provided by operating activilies 159,508 {40,968)
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year 57,462 98,430
Fund cash balance at the end of the year 216,970 57,462
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16. Managed Funds (Continued)

(b) Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund (continued)
(i) Grants are awarded to eligible organisations through a Call for Proposals. During the 2018/2019 year 55

projects were awarded grant funding. See listing below:

Beneficiaries with balances as at 31, July 2019
Alligator Head Foundation

Alpha Institute (2 projects)

Ashley Primary and Infant School

Balaclava Development Area Committee

Bartons Community Development Committee

Beeston Spring Cammunity Development Committee
Bellefield Citizens Development Association

Best Care Foundation

Bethabara Primary and Infant Parent Teachers Association
Bright River Cooperative Society Limited

Brighter Future Farmers Group

Brooks Level Citizens Association Benevolent Society
Bustamante High School

Carron Hall Primary School

Cave Valley Multi-Purpose Cooperative

Central Jamaica Social Development Initiative (3 projects)
Church Teachers College

Clarendon Municipal Corporation {2 projects)

Clarendon Parish Development Committee Benevolent
Society (2 projects)
Claude McKay High School

Cockpit Country Local Forest Management Committee

College of Agriculture Science and Education (CASE) (3
projects)
Cross Keys Development Area Committee (2 projects)

Denbigh High School

Development Beyond Horizons

Do Good Jamaica

Earth Strong Agro NGO
Balance carried forward on next page

Amount Amount

awarded disbursed Balance
$°000 $'000 $°000
4,521 - 4,521
8,158 4418 3,741
4,931 4831 100
3,906 3,762 145
5,000 3,408 1,582
4,998 3611 1,387
4,940 - 4,940
3,101 3,101 -
4,997 4,956 41
4,147 4,147 -
4,999 - 4,999
1,000 918 82
5,000 4,981 19
4,827 - 4,827
5,000 3,293 1,707
14,950 13,450 1,500
5,000 4,525 475
8,569 - 8,569
10,000 4,950 5,050
4,425 4,196 229
4972 1,838 3,134
14,994 14,994 -
8,432 8,042 388
5,000 3,140 1,860
3,657 2,747 910
4,948 4,948 -
5,000 5,000 -
159,472 109,256 50,216
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16. Managed Funds (Continued)
(b) Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund (continued)
Amount Amount
awarded disbursed Balance
$°000 $°000 $000
Balance brought forward 159,472 109,256 50,216
Elliott Farmers Community Group 4,731 4,245 485
Enablers of Community Advancement Projects and Initiatives 4,942 4,942 -
Essex Hall Citizens Association 5,000 5,000 -
Fair Prospect Gardens Citizen's Association 5,000 4,546 454
Faith Academy Limited 4847 4. 847 -
Food for the Poor 5,000 953 4,047
Fort George Primary School 4,671 4616 55
Frankfield Primary and Infant Parent Teachers Association 4,710 4,710 -
Frankfield Primary and Infant School 4,220 4,220 -
Grants Mountain Local Forest Management Committee 4910 - 4910
Green Island Friendly Fisherfolks Cooperative 5,000 3,008 1,994
Greenwich Town Fisherfolks Cooperative 5,000 3,613 1,487
HEART NTA Ebony Park Academy 5,000 - 5,000
Jacks Hill Community Benevolent Society 1,150 1,076 74
Jamaica Association for the Deaf 4,992 4432 560
Jamaica Conservation and Development Trust 5,000 2,066 2,934
Jamaica Greenhouse Growers Association 5,000 5,000 -
Jamaica Surfing Association 4,706 3,906 800
James Hill Farmers Group 2,656 2,656 -
Jeffrey Town Farmers Association (2 projects) 9,800 9,670 130
Jones Town Baptist Church 4.956 4,523 433
Kellits Primary School PTA - Kellits' SWIFT 4,996 - 4,996
Kitson Town Community Development Committee 5,000 4,642 358
Knockalva Polytechnic College 4,856 - 4,856
Knockpatrick Citizens Association 4 576 4,576 -
Knox Community College 4,950 2,375 2,575
Local Initiative Facility for the Environment (LIFE) 5,000 4,830 170
Lucky Valley Primary School 5,000 3,696 1,304
Mafoota Agricultural Cooperative Society (2 projects) 9,828 4,828 5,000
Manchester Parish Development Committee 5,000 4,929 71
Marlie Hill Community Development Committee 5,000 5,000 -
Maryland Community Development Committee 5,000 5,000 -
Merlene Ottey High School 4,015 2,950 1,066
Balance carried forward on next page 323,984 230,009 93,975
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16. Managed Funds (Continued)

{b) Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund {continued)

Balance brought forward
Mile Gully/Warwick Castle Benevolent Development Society

Moneague College {3 projects)

Mount Airy Primary & Infant School

Mount Olivet Boys Home (United Church)

Nature Preservation Foundation

Negril Area Environmental Protection Trust

New Horizon Christian Outreach Ministries (NHCOM)
Northern Caribbean University (3 projects)

Old Harbour Youth Farmers Network

Parry Town Citizens Association

Pedrovian Community Benevolent Society

Pepper Production and Marketing Foundation Limited
Plant Jamaica

Planters Hall All Age and Infant School

Porter's Mountain Community Development Committee-
Climate Resilient Community based Water
Ridge Red Bank Community Benevolent Society

Rock Hall Production and Marketing Benevolent Society
Rock Primary and Infant School

Rocky Point Development Council Benevolent Society
Rose Hall Farmers Group

Rose Town Foundation for the Built Environment

Rose Town Foundation for the Built Environment

Rural Agricultural Development Authority (RADA) - St Andrew
Rural Water Supply Limited (3 projects)

Sanguinetti Farmers Group - Soil Conservation

Seaforth High School

Siloah Community Development Committee

Source Farm Foundation & Ecovillage

Southern Trelawny Environmental Agency - (2 projects)
St. Elizabeth Agricuttural Cooperative Society

$St. Mary Technical High School

St. Thomas Bee Farmers Cooperative Limited

Balance carried forward on next page

Amount Amount
awarded disbursed Balance
$'000 $'000 $°000
323,984 230,009 93,975
4,950 - 4,950
12,512 12,512 -
4,743 4,262 481
4,818 4,818 -
5,000 - 5,000
5,000 4,000 1,000
5,000 4,905 95
14,987 14,887 100
5,000 5,000 -
4,376 . 4,376
4977 4977 -
5,000 5,000 -
4,186 3,523 663
5,000 3,694 1,306
5,000 2,691 2,310
4,990 4,990 -
740 216 525
4,931 4,831 100
5,000 5,000 -
4,990 3,493 1,497
3,651 3,655 96
1,463 1,463 -
3,876 3,431 445
14,570 12,897 1,672
5,000 - 5,000
4,498 4,178 320
4,754 4,391 364
5,000 5,000 -
10,000 9,952 48
4,940 4,940 0
5,000 = 5,000
4844 4,815 27
502,780 373,430 129,350
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17. Administrative Fund Expenses Recoverable

2019 2018

$°000 $000
Opening balance {20,136) (20,596)
Surplus Income over Expenditure 10,326 460
Closing balance (9,810) {20,136)

18. Capital Reserves

The cost of capital assets acquired using Government of Jamaica EAl payments received is credited to capital
reserves and released to the administration fund over the life of the relevant assets by reference to depreciation

charges. The balance is comprised as follows:

2019 2018

$’000 $°000

Balance at beginning of year 11,247 11,739
Less:

Transfers to administration fund in current year (depreciation) (663) (492)

Balance at end of year 10,584 11,247

Depreciation noted in the Capital Reserves differ from amount recognised in Note 10 property, plant and
equipment as the funds used to acquire (i) some of computers and (ii) Motor Vehicles were obtained from
sources external to the America’s Fund. The depreciation charges recognise in capital reserves excludes
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16.
Managed Funds (Continued)
(b) Special Climate Change Adaptation Fund (continued)
Amount Amount
awarded disbursed Balance
$’000 $'000 $’000
Balance brought forward 502,780 373,430 129,350
St. Thomas Environmental Protection Association 4,910 2,268 2,642
Summerfield Community Development Organization 5,000 5,000 -
Sunbeam Children's Home 5,000 4,875 125
Tarrant Baptist Church 2,324 - 2,324
The Caribshare Company Ltd. 4,082 4,082 -
The University of the West Indies 33,354 27,968 5,387
Troja Primary & Junior High School 5,000 3,643 1,357
Unitas of Jamaica 5,000 5,000 -
Upper Rock Spring All Age & Infant School 4,983 4,893 100
Vision of Hope / Mountainside Juices Benevolent Society 4,988 1,409 3,579
Wesley Frankfield Women's League 4,920 742 4178
Wesleyan Farmers Group 3,477 2,434 1,043
Westmoreland Municipal Corporation 4,990 4,990 -
White Horses Botany Bay and Pamphret Development 4,999 3,912 1,087
Benevolent Society Limited
White River Marine Association (2 projects) 9,050 6,933 2117
Windalco Kirkvine Joint Communities Council 4,800 4,800 -
Windsor Castle Social Services Home Economics Benevolent 6,446 2,285 4,161
Society (2 projects)
York Small Farmers Benevolent Society 5,000 3,671 1,328
Total 621,113 462,335 158,778
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depreciation on these assets.
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19.

20.

21.

Commitments

As at 31 July 2019, the Foundation had project grant funds committed and not disbursed of approximately
$197,293,000 SCCAF $158,778,000 (Note 16); TFCA $33,020,000, PL480 $5,269,000, Aid Debt $226,000).
Related Party Balances and Transactions

(a) Key management compensation:
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2019 2018
$’000 $°000
Wages and salaries 13,211 14,008
Payroll taxes — employer's portion 1,339 1,413
Other 240 240
14,790 15,661

Directors’ fees Nil Nil

At year ended 31 July 2019, grants approved but not disbursed for University of the West Indies amounted
to $4,877,000 from TFCA/PL480/AID Debt, $5,386,000 is also committed under the Special Climate
Change Fund.

Changes in Accounting Policies

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments and impairment of financial
assets.

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 August 2018 resuited in changes in accounting policies
and there were no adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements as at implementation.
The new accounting policies are set out in note 2. In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 9
(7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative figures have not been restated.

(i) Classification and measurement
On 1 August 2018 (the date of initial application of IFRS 9), the Foundation determined which business
models applied to its financial assets and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS
9 categories. The main effects resulting from this reclassification are as follows:

Fair value
Available- through Amortised
for-sale P&L cost
Financial assets —- 1 August 2018 Note $'000 $'000 $°000
Closing balance at 31 July 2018 — IAS 39 67,014 - -
Reclassify equities from available-for-sale to
fair value through profit and loss a {52,5653) 52,553 -
Reclassify GOJ bonds from available-for-sale
to amortised cost a (14,461) - 14,461
Opening balance 1 August 2018 — IFRS 9 - 52,553 14,461
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21. Changes in Accounting Policies {Continued)

(a) Reclassification from available-for-sale to amortised cost
Certain investments were reclassified from available-for-sale to amortised cost as at 1 August 2018 as
the business model is to hold these investments for collection of contractual cash flows, and the cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount. The fair value of
$14,461,515 as at 1 August 2018 was equivalent to the amortised cost for these assets. There was no
impact on retained earnings at 1 August 2018.

There was no impact to refained earnings of equities reclassified from available for sale to fair value
through profit and loss as the Foundation has been recognising the changes in fair value in the statement
of Americas’ and TFCA's Funds.

22. Subsequent Events

Beginning in January 2020, global markets have experienced and may continue to experience significant
volatility resulting from the spread of a novel coronavirus known as COVID-19. The outbreak of COVID-19
has resulted in trave! and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand
and general market uncertainty. The extent and duration of the impact of COVID-19 on global and local
economies, financial markets, and sectors and the specific industry in which the Foundation operates is
uncertain at this point and has the potential to continue to adversely affect its business, results of operations
or financial condition, the impact of which is still under assessment.
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EFJ MEMBERS

1.  Association of Community Based Organizations (formerly Association of

Clubs)
2.  Association of Development Agencies (ADA)
3. BirdLife Jamaica
4. Buff Bay Local Forest Management Committee (BBLFMC)
5.  Caribbean Coastal Area Management Foundation (C-CAM)
6. Community Based Rehabilitation Jamaica (formerly 3D Projects)
7. Dolphin Head Local Forest Management Committee (DHLFMC)
8. Jamaican Association on Intellectual Disabilities (JAID)
9.  Jamaica Association for the Deaf
10. Jamaica Baptist Women'’s Federation
11. Jamaica Cancer Society
12. Jamaica Conservation and Development Trust (JCDT)
13. Jamaica Environment Trust (JET)
14. Jamaica Family Planning Association
15. Jamaica Institute of Environmental Professionals (JIEP)
16. Jamaica Organic Agriculture Movement (JOAM)
17. Jamaica Save the Children
18. Jamaica Society for the Blind
19. Local Initiative Facility for the Environment (LIFE)
20. Northern Rio Minho Local Forest Management Committee (NRMLFMC)
21. Portland Environment Protection Association (PEPA)
22. Professional Development Institute (Girl’s Town)
23. The Council of Voluntary Social Services (CVSS)
24. Women's Resource and Outreach Centre Limited (WROC)




